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Overview

Striving to be a leading liberal arts university in Asia for the world
delivering academic excellence in a caring, creative and global
culture, the University commits its energy and resources to three
cornerstone strategic priorities set out in its ten-year Institutional
Strategic Plan 2018-28 ("ISP")—Best Student Experience, Research

Excellence and Capacity.

The University is embarking on a new stage of development
with full thrust to promote research excellence that advances
knowledge, scholarship and academic leadership which
contributes to the holistic development of Hong Kong, the nation,
the region and the world. The University commits resources to
implement a comprehensive action plan for the ISP, including
the "Talent100" initiative which drives the recruitment of faculty
and research talents from around the world to teach, conduct
innovative research and advance humanity at our internationalised

campus.

The 2017-18 financial year under review was the second year of
the 2016-19 funding triennium of the University Grants Committee
("UGC"). Although additional resources was committed for
the execution of the strategic initiatives under the ISP, it was
gratifying to see that the financial year was concluded with a
healthy surplus and a strong balance sheet. For the year ended
30 June 2018, the Group recorded a surplus of $209.8 million
(2016-17: $304.3 million) while the University had a surplus
of $200.8 million (2016-17: $264.9 million). The net assets
of the Group rose by 5.2% to $4,395.4 million (2016-17:
$4,178.1 million) and those of the University increased by 4.9%
to $4,272.5 million (2016-17: $4,07 1.7 million) as at 30 June
2018.

The competition for students among self-financing programmes
remains strong due to a further drop in the total number of Hong
Kong Diploma of Secondary Education students and an increase
in scholarships offered by some higher education institutions.
The University has made significant efforts in reviewing and
enhancing the quality of its self-financing programmes to meet
the demanding education needs of the society. Despite the drop
in the student enrolment of the School of Continuing Education
("SCE") in 2017-18, the University's total tuition income from
self-financing programmes for 2017-18 increased by 4.8% as

compared to that of 2016-17.
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With the goal of reverting the drop in student enrolment, SCE has
committed resources to improve its development plan and deploy
a new approach to academic programme management and
student admission policy in order to attract more students without
compromising the quality of education. SCE's student-centric
admission measures and consistent education quality have
resulted in a higher-than-anticipated student enrolment in the
academic year 2018-19 despite the availability of many other
options in the self-financing education sector for students. SCE
will strive for the provision of higher education quality, better
student learning experience and wider exposure to students so
that they can advance their education in degree programmes or

equip themselves to seek good employment opportunities.

Total income of the University for the year ended 30 June 2018
decreased slightly by $23.8 million to $3,089.0 million (2016-17:
$3,112.8 million). The decrease was mainly attributable to a
reduction of $73.1 million in Interest and Net Investment Income
due to the reversion of financial markets in the second quarter
of 2018; a drop of $27.6 million in Donations and Benefactions;
and a reduction of $10.6 million in Other Income. The decrease
in total income was partially offset by an increase of $40.5 million
in Government Subventions and an increase of $44.3 million in

Tuition, Programme and Other Fees.

Total expenditure of the University was $2,888.1 million for
2017-18 (2016-17: $2,848.0 million). There was an increase
of $40.1 million in total expenditure mainly due to the annual
upward salary adjustment, which was in line with the salary
increment for civil servants of the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (" Government"), as well
as additional spending incurred for the implementation of the

strategic initiatives under the ISP.

Education Services

The Tuition, Programme and Other Fees received by the
University for 2017-18 rose by 4% to $1,159.8 million (2016-17:
$1,115.5 million). The increase of $44.3 million resulted from
a surge of $35.7 million from self-financing programmes and a
mild increase of $8.6 million from the UGC-funded academic

programmes of the University.
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The expenditure on Teaching, Learning and Research of the
University for 2017-18 rose to $2,006.9 million (2016-17:
$1,947.7 million). The increase of $59.2 million was mainly due
to the annual salary adjustment as well as additional spending to

enhance teaching and research quality.

The expenditure on Institutional Support of the University was
$881.2 million (2016-17: $900.3 million). The decrease of
$19.1 million was mainly due to a reduction in minor works on

campus offset by the annual upward adjustment in salaries.

SCE recorded a decrease in tuition fees of 4.7% to $352.4 million
(2016-17: $369.8 million), arising from lower student enrolment in
Associate Degree programmes following the introduction of the
Government's subsidy scheme of $30,000 per annum for eligible
students pursuing full-time locally-accredited self-financing
undergraduate programmes in Hong Kong. The net operating
surplus (after depreciation) for SCE was $10.7 million in 2017-18
(2016-17: $30.0 million).

The Beijing Normal University —Hong Kong Baptist University
United International College in Zhuhai ("UIC"), a joint venture
between Beijing Normal University and the University, completed
its relocation to a new campus at Jintong Road in August 2017. In
2017-18, UIC recorded a net operating surplus of RMB3.3 million
(2016-17: RMB25.4 million). The decrease in the net operating
surplus was mainly attributable to additional staffing and operating
expenses associated with the new campus. The new campus can
accommodate more students and the total student enrolment of

UIC was over 5,600 for the academic year 2017-18.

With an aim to facilitating immersive learning on the promotion
of business entrepreneurship, the University selected creative-
minded students with their pioneering business ideas to participate
in a holistic boot camp which was conducted by UC Berkeley
consultants in May 2018. Students formed teams to pitch their
business ideas, attended interactive lectures and received one-

on-one mentoring from industry experts.

Community Services

In 2017-18, 10 Chinese medicine clinics were operated by

the University. Since the inception of these clinics, cumulative
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patient visits have exceeded two million. In 2017-18, total
revenue of these clinics amounted to $125.3 million (2016-17:
$120.6 million). The increase in revenue was mainly due to an
increase in the number of patients and slightly higher medical
consultation fees. The University hosts a community day at four
of its Chinese medicine clinics on the 1 of May every year. During
that day, our Chinese medicine practitioners are thrilled to be
serving the community by offering health talks, free consultations

and Chinese medicine.

The Lui Seng Chun clinic in Sham Shui Po offers free consultations
and free Chinese medicine, subject to a daily quota, to recipients
of Comprehensive Social Security Assistance. In collaboration
with the Lions Club, the Hong Kong Baptist University Chinese
Medicine Charity Foundation has provided financial subsidies to
the University's clinics to enable them to offer concessions on
consultation fees to the needy. In the past decade, more than
4,000 privilege cards were given to the elderly, and more than

32,000 consultation coupons were utilised by them.

In response to community needs and in collaboration with the
Hong Kong Housing Society, the University opened a new clinic
in North Point to provide traditional Chinese medicine and other
related services to the elderly residents of Tanner Hill and its

neighbourhood in September 2017.

With the generous donation of over $90 million from The
Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust, the School of Chinese
Medicine of the University established the Hong Kong Baptist
University — Jockey Club Chinese Medicine Disease Prevention
and Health Management Centre ("Centre") and launched a
five-year "Jockey Club 'Embrace Health' Chinese Medicine
Programme" to address the challenges caused by an ageing
population and the continuously rising number of patients with
chronic diseases. The Centre is the first Chinese medicine health
service centre in Hong Kong founded on the core concepts of
Chinese medicine disease prevention and body constitution,
with the aim of preventing diseases from occurring, worsening
and relapsing by providing comprehensive Chinese medicine

healthcare services to enhance public health.

Opened to the public in 2008 and housed in a renovated

decommissioned factory building, the Jockey Club Creative Arts
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Centre (""JCCAC"), which is a collaboration among the University,
the Hong Kong Arts Centre and the Hong Kong Arts Development
Council, is positioned as a multidisciplinary artist village and arts
centre to support arts and cultural development in Hong Kong
through the provision of arts space. JCCAC helps nurture creative
talents, and promote arts and culture in society. By leasing out its
studio space, Jockey Club Black Box Theatre and other facilities
to local artists and art groups, JCCAC recorded a net operating
surplus of $0.5 million (2016-17: $0.6 million) in its tenth year of

operation.

Other Operations

The Institute for Research and Continuing Education ("IRACE"),
the University's research arm in China, continues to flourish
this year. With the concerted efforts of its staff, IRACE secured
funding of RMB5.3 million for 19 research projects in 2017
(2016: RMB6.7 million for 15 projects) from the National Natural

Science Foundation of China.

HKBU R&D Licensing Limited continues specialising in technology
transfer and commercialisation of the University's technologies
and intellectual properties. During the year, the Company
received licence income from spin-off companies as well as the
funding support from the University for a film production project.
In 2017-18, the Company recorded an income of $5.0 million
(2016-17: $2.9 million). We are proud that the creativity and
achievements of the University led to the award of three Gold
Medals with Congratulations of Jury, one Gold Medal and an
award of excellence from Romania at the 46th International
Exhibition of Inventions of Geneva held in Switzerland in April
2018. The University is the only institution in Hong Kong that
has been awarded gold medals for all the projects it submitted
in three consecutive years. The top accolades manifested the
recognition of the high social impact of our research and the
effective solutions to real-world problems by international

experts.

Fundraising Efforts

The University managed to secure donations totalling

$81.3 million in 2017-18 (2016-17: $108.9 million). In the

10



n

BB R 25 ot B 10
ARE BN HE S PR (BB A\
A E A B et B LIRS DR TR
FHER > M E A B R R 2 B8 i 2 A A o
KBTS 5 /i T 360 Al 0 <t 30 9 — (1
g RFEERE S WO A4 100 KA
] % % A A BIAR O P 4 7 AT AEE I ) DA
BHELER - —RURE S E R R &
BUEAB SR - BB ML B R - BT
VAL [ A5 1 R ERR o A AR K
B BEMRREOBMMHE -

NS
b3

ZHEA 201718 FF EEBRBR BT R - KB 5%
& Y £ 2.344 50 (2016-17 4R &« 44 &
eti 3.075FT) - EMBEZEEGHTHRE
MZEENENERET - KERNRIES
(H AN B A8 T A TH) 1D 2017-18 4E 3% 15
B E A 6.1% °

MR EEREME - hRE G BRRBFFER
o BT W o A T T R
Ko AE 3B BR AR AT B F WG R
REHHATEEEET - BEH S5 E AR
e I o % S A D A i 3 R B R M
EWTELERLE  BKH I AT AT R
B (R EERE D% REERLR
I G SR W A TR R R AR o
TR SRV T AR R R R o [
AR E Ho T B BR BT HERRER
P IS IR 0 4 1 R SRR K T o SR 7 T
B TR - AR 2018-19 FE T
FEEE -

2018-19 Budget, the Government's proposal to allocate
$2.5 billion to launch the Eighth Matching Grant Scheme for
10 publicly funded post-secondary education institutions,
including the University, is undoubtedly beneficial for enhancing
the quality of education and long-term development of the
institutions in Hong Kong. Taking every opportunity of the
Eighth Matching Grant Scheme, the University has developed
an aggressive plan to secure more donations for the benefits
of the students, innovative research, the Talent100 and campus
development in the coming years. On behalf of the University,
I would like to express my heartfelt gratitude and appreciation
to our donors and keen supporters for their generosity and
unswerving support, which has contributed significantly to helping
the University improve its teaching, research and community

services.

Investments

Benefitting from the rally in global equity markets in 2017-18,
the University recorded an investment gain of $234.4 million
(2016-17: an investment gain of $307.5 million). With close
monitoring by the Investment Sub-committee under the Finance
Committee, the University's Long-term Fund, which was managed
by external investment managers, reported an overall positive

gain of 6.1% in 2017-18.

The investment markets have been increasingly volatile due to
concerns about interest rate hikes in the United States, continuing
Sino-US trade tension and currency crisis of the emerging markets.
Investors are becoming more risk averse amid growing concerns
about the outlook for the global economy and negative sentiment
on Asian equity markets. To mitigate the potential impact of
increasing market volatility on the University's Long-term Fund,
the University is conducting the second comprehensive review
of the strategic asset allocation ("SAA") for its Long-term Fund
after the last SAA was implemented about four years ago. It is
expected that the SAA would increase the investment return while
maintaining or reducing the long-term risk level of the Long-term
Fund in the increasingly volatile and highly unpredictable
investment environment. The result of the SAA review, upon its

conclusion, will be implemented in the latter half of 2018-19.
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Capital Projects

Government grants of $66.8 million (2016-17: $95.4 million)
were received from the UGC to upgrade campus facilities of
the University under its spatial reorganisation and improvement
projects in 2017-18. The current teaching and research facilities
will be upgraded to facilitate the implementation of the ISP.
New high-impact laboratories will be built and further spatial
reorganisation will be made to accommodate the newly recruited
academic and teaching staff under the Talent100. To make space
available for the academic staff, research facilities and student
development, it is planned that some administrative offices and
research centres will be relocated from the main campuses in
Kowloon Tong to a new campus under a long-term lease in Tsuen
Wan in 2018-19. Renovation of the campus in Tsuen Wan is

underway.

To meet the growing needs of students and faculty staff for
teaching and research, the University will develop a hostel and
academic building complex (""HABC") on the former Lee Wai Lee
site on Renfrew Road, Kowloon Tong. This composite building
is expected to provide 1,726 bed spaces and the much needed
academic space. The vacation of the Lee Wai Lee site adjacent
to the campus of the University in Kowloon Tong provides a
not-to-be-missed opportunity for the construction of a mega-
composite vertical campus combining the operation of hostel
tower blocks and academic space which can promote a holistic-
learning and living dual-environment benefitting the students
through increased efficiency and productivity. The construction of
the hostels will be majority funded by the Government's Hostel
Development Fund of $12 billion which was approved by the
Finance Committee of the Legislative Council in July 2018. The
University is actively seeking donations for the construction of

the HABC which is scheduled for completion in 2024.

Looking Ahead

To realise the aspiration to be a leading research-led liberal
arts university in Asia for the world, the University has already
forged ahead with the implementation of the new strategic
initiatives under the ISP to offer the best student experience,

recruit academic talents, produce excellent research in

2
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selected clusters, promote internationalisation and enhance
worldwide recognition. The University has made good progress
in various aspects including global recruitment of talents in
strategic clusters, enhancement of campus internationalisation
by increasing student exchanges, internships, academic
collaborations with overseas institutions, and the development
of new interdisciplinary programmes to enhance student learning
experience. While actively working on the overall design and
funding plan for the HABC, we foresee the expansion of our
campus in 2024 to accommodate the strategic development of
the University as well as the provision of innovative educational
facilities for interactive knowledge making and learning for the

next generation of students.

While we are excited about the transformation as envisaged
in our ISP, the University is mindful of the substantial capital
investments for upgrading its infrastructure, research facilities
and amenities. The University will plan, prioritise and manage its
financial resources carefully to meet and exceed the demanding
expectation of the community on a world-class university to
offer first-rate educational facility, whole person education,

impactful research and innovative student learning experience.

With the strength of the University Administration and the strong
support of all members of the University community, | have
full confidence that the University will continue to build from
strength to strength, attaining its aspiration of being a leading
research-led liberal arts university in Asia for the world in the

foreseeable future.

Ms. Rosanna Y.T. Choi
Treasurer

16 October 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO
THE COUNCIL OF HONG KONG BAPTIST UNIVERSITY

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong
Kong Baptist University ("the University") and its subsidiaries
(together "the Group") set out on pages 19 to 115, which
comprise the consolidated and University Statements of Financial
Position as at 30 June 2018, the consolidated and University
Statements of Comprehensive Income, the consolidated and
University Statements of Changes in Fund Balances and the
consolidated and University Cash Flow Statements for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the University and of the
Group as at 30 June 2018 and of their financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA™").

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (""HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants ("'the Code") and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor's report thereon

The Council of the University is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information
included in the financial report, other than the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

Responsibilities of the Council and those charged
with governance for the consolidated financial
statements

The Council of the University is responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and for such
internal control as the Council determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Council
is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Council either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the

Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from

16
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material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 26 of Hong
Kong Baptist University Ordinance (Cap. 1126), and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations

or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's

internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the Council.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council's use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit

evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
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related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease

to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince's Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

16 October 2018
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Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2018

BFE2018 56 A30HIEFEEL2 T E L

Ba KE
Consolidated University
(AW T oeat) (i
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) Note 2018 2017 2018 2017
KA Income 9
BUR B K Government Subventions 2 1,367,850 1,327,349 1,357,602 1,317,101
L AR R H A Tuition, Programme and Other Fees 3 1,159,801 1,115,452 1,159,801 1,115,452
FLE FF &I A Interest and Net Investment Income 4 234,959 307,657 234,365 307,465
M E S Donations and Benefactions 5 87,663 114,408 81,282 108,923
MEE R B WA Auxiliary Services Income 6 233,335 232,126 220,584 217,954
oAt Other Income 7 51,919 62,759 35,339 45,952
3,135,527 3159751 3,088,973 3,112,847
X it Expenditure 8,9
HE - BN KR Teaching, Learning and Research
HEE B R Teaching and Research 1,742,495 1,697,324 1,732,957 1,684,341
T S i Library 83,661 84,025 83,661 84,025
Hh Y BB A Rt Central Computing Facilities 98,722 91,469 98,669 91,447
oAt B s Other Academic Services 90,053 86,507 91,655 87,907
BEE IR Institutional Support
BT Management and General 280,610 253,896 277,857 255,876
B KA BB 3 Premises and Related Expenses 436,221 468,734 414,236 449,403
BT — BB E R Students and General Education Services 173,293 166,116 173,293 166,116
Fofth 355 ) Other Activities 24,918 36,206 15,810 28,876
2,929,973 2,884,277 2,888,138 2,847,991
BERAR Surplus from Operations 205,554 275,474 200,835 264,856
JEALT AT 2 05ts /(E48)  Share of Profits/Losses) of an Associate 15 322 (134) - -
A A i 2 i as Share of Profits of Joint Ventures 16 3,927 28,947 - -
Bt i 2 6% Surplus before Taxation 209,803 304,287 200,835 264,856
ey Income Tax 33 (10) (16) - -
AR R Surplus for the Year 209,793 304,271 200,835 264,856
R Attributable to:
KE The University 210,095 305,197 200,835 264,856
A 55 Non-controlling Interests (302) (926) - -
209,793 304,271 200,835 264,856
AR TR Surplus for the Year 209,793 304,271 200,835 264,856
ARAR JBE At A i W2 Other Comprehensive Income for the Year
HAZ W R TR A A Items that may be reclassified
BRSEEMIEH : subsequently to surplus or deficit:
BRI S Exchange differences on translation of
MHHEZ financial statements of an overseas 6,660 (2,954) - -
e 5.5 4 joint venture
RPN YN Exchange differences on translation of
HHREZ financial statements of overseas 853 (666) - -
e 56,75 4 subsidiaries
AR S AT W25 B R Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 217,306 300,651 200,835 264,856

20
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Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2018 (Cont'd)

Bh x5
Consolidated University

(LARET 553t ) il
( Expressed) Tn thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) Note 2018 2017 2018 2017
i (A /Z : Transfers (from)/to:
Y& A e % General and Development Reserve Fund 10 83,400 (11,182) 82,160 (12,324)
HNES Restricted Funds 1 51,665 157,695 34,544 124,430
HAth A4 Other Funds 12 82,543 155,064 84,131 152,750
FFPEERE A5 Non-controlling Interests (302) (926) . -
R JE 2 T WA 2 4 Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 217,306 300,651 200,835 264,856
GRS 27 2 115 HZMsk AR MHIREZ — b -
The Notes set out on pages 27 to 115 form an integral part of the financial statements.
REHE G 20185 10 A 16 ARG FFal 8 o
Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 16 October 2018.
Ak BE B R
Rkt YN C B
Ms. Rosanna Y. T. Choi Prof. Roland T. Chin Mr. Edmund T. M. Li

Treasurer President & Vice-Chancellor

Director of Finance
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2018

e K&
Consolidated University
(LHBHET 6T ) Wit
( Expressecl)l;n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) Note 2018 2017 2018 2017
JEREE Non-Current Assets
EVQLy/E Investment Properties 13 83 89 83 89
HAbY) 2 K 2544 Other Properties and Equipment 132,692,299 2,669,023 2,654,022 2,629,140
2,692,382 2,669,112 2,654,105 2,629,229
iy /NP Interest in an Associate 15 1,313 991 - -
WA B s Interests in Joint Ventures 16 234,918 224,331 146,042 146,042
wa Investments 7 2,000 2,000 2,100 5,932
2,930,613 2,896,434 2,802,247 2,781,203
TR Current Assets
g Investments 7 3972907 3,540,247 3,972,907 3,540,247
e Inventories 18 10 415 . i
JREWIR K ~ FE AR Accounts Receivable, Prepayments
PN and Deposits 19 131,920 172,609 156,202 200,077
T WK Term Deposits 20 609,769 817,186 609,769 817,186
B W R B4 Cash and Cash Equivalents 2 273,299 288,159 208,549 224,691
4,987,905 4,818,616 4,947,427 4,782,201
WE AR Current Liabilities
AW Deferred Income 2 706,414 647,701 673,287 615,665
1R B AR A3 Provision for Employee Benefits 3 172,671 163,868 172,584 163,550
JRE TR 3K B2 e R HIE H Accounts Payable and Accruals 2 376,208 411,874 371,206 407,600
BUR K Government Loans 2% 15,964 15,964 15,964 15,964
SRATE K Bank Loans 2 7,773 9,087 7,773 9,087
FEATBIIE A Income Tax Payable 56 88 - -
1,279,086 1,248,582 1,240,814 1,211,866
i page R XiEN Net Current Assets 3,708,819 3,570,034 3,706,613 3,570,335
AR B AL Total Assets less Current Liabilities 6,639,432 6,466,468 6,508,860 6,351,538
Bl = Non-Current Liabilities
1§ B AR A Provision for Employee Benefits 3 110,520 114,778 110,439 114,739
BURF R Government Loans 2 127,716 143,680 127,716 143,680
SBATRK Bank Loans 2 40,318 48,082 40,318 48,082
IR R Deferred Capital Funds 7 1,965,478 1,981,834 1,957,898 1,973,383
% M NET ASSETS 4,395,400 4,178,094 4,272,489 4,071,654
— M R A A General and Development Reserve Fund 10 409,866 377937 406,868 376,179
IHEE Restricted Funds n 2,659,599 2,592,089 2,555,366 2,504,977
Hofth £ 4 Other Funds 2 1,312,600 1,194,431 1,310,255 1,190,498
, FUNDS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
3 A B
[ N B UNIVERSITY 4,382,065 4,164,457 4,272,489 4,071,654
TR 45 Non-controlling Interests 13,335 13,637 - -
AR TOTAL FUNDS 4,395,400 4,178,094 4,272,489 4,071,654

FIHAS: 27 % 115 HZ MR AAMB R L — 30 «

The Notes set out on pages 27 to 115 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 30 June 2018

oty K&

Consolidated University
(LhtsMEToCqt) it 3
( Expressed) Tn thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) Note 2018 2017 2018 2017
B Operating Activities
Wi Tl 75 Surplus before Taxation 209,803 304,287 200,835 264,856
EIEE Adjustments for:
LR A Interest Income (10,398) (10,814 (9,797)  (10,598)
MR A Dividend Income 4 (66) (55) (66) (55)
e Depreciation 201,398 218,671 194,794 213,861
EMT& LA Other Investment Income 4 (30) (33) 37) (57)

RTRNERE By &1 73} Loss on Disposal of Other Properties and Equipment 1,865 72 1,866 72

MHEER B LRESR Net Realised and Unrealised

s Gains on Trading Securities 4 (223,758)  (299026)  (223,758)  (299,026)
A S0 A Transfer from Deferred Capital Funds 7 (150,304) (166,342)  (146,732)  (164,340)
TG A M 2 i ta Share of Gains of Joint Ventures 16 (3,927)  (28,947) -

JEALBR S A F 2 (W3t ) /518 Share of (Gain)/Loss of an Associate 15 (322) 134 -

SN SRR Foreign Exchange Difference (201) (58) -

B SR E B A Operating Results before Changes in Working Capital 24,060 17,889 17,105 4,713
FEZWY Decrease in Inventories 405 705 -

JEWIE S - TfTES k%42 Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Receivable,

B / W) Prepayments and Deposits 42,473 (8,207) 45,659 4,675
WESQE KRR E Z Decrease in Accounts Payable and Accruals 6,760) (12,009 (7,439) (10,370)
1R B AR I3t 2 3 m Increase in Provision for Employee Benefits 4,545 17,945 4,734 17,784
I A Z B8 Increase in Deferred Income 125,827 143,668 122,035 126,527
BEED R Bl Cash Generated from Operating Activities 190,550 159991 182,094 143,329
FAIBUE Tax Paid
FARE Ry lkE ) Hong Kong Profits Tax Paid 42) - -

B BEIGZ F A Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities 190,508 159991 182,094 143,329
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 30 June 2018 (Cont'd)

e KE
Consolidated University
(LT esh) Bk
( Expressecj)l;n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) Note 2018 2017 2018 2017
REHEH Investing Activities
E RS Interest Received 9,255 9,858 8,654 9,642
B Dividend Received 66 55 66 55
EMERZ Y /() Decrease/(Increase) in Term Deposits 207,417  (263,960) 207,417 (263,960)
Payments for Acquisition of Other
B A 3 KR M 2 3R Properties and Equipment (230,473)  (299,374)  (226,579)  (291,483)
- s s Payments for Purchase of Held-to-maturity Debt
. I B .
! ﬁ’?‘;&%@%\%ﬁ%iﬁ{;ﬁ&% Securities and Financial Instruments with - (2,000) - -
TS it Embedded Derivatives
Proceeds from Sale of Held-to-maturity Debt Securities
=3 I
i %ﬁ%ﬁtﬁiiﬁ: E_ﬁ%ﬁ and Financial Instruments with 70,690 128,163 70,690 126,163
w o Embedded Derivatives
Net Cash Outflow from Sales/Purchases of
= H
i &/gﬁ%%( g‘g;}% A Z%m Other Debt Securities, Equity Securities and (304,115)  (449,163)  (300,276) (449,139
UL Investment Funds
BEGHH N2 F5 4 Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (247,160)  (876,421)  (240,028) (868,722)
A Financing Activities
IR TEIEE Grants Received for Other
HAh Y2 KAt 2 Bk Properties and Equipment Acquisition 66,834 95,351 66,834 95,351
fEIRBUR & Repayments of Government Loans 20) (15,964) (15,964 (15,964) (15,964
B R E%’( Repayments of Bank Loans 21b) (9,078) (8,413) 9,078) (8,413)
FEIERAT Proceeds of Bank Loans - 18,000 - 18,000
BB A S BLA Net Cash Generated from Financing Activities 41,792 88,974 41,792 88,974
B4 RERB &2 WP Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (14,860)  (627,456) (16,142)  (636,419)
B R B Z FR G5 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the Year 288,159 915615 224,691 861,110
Bl& R AEF Bl 2 5T Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Year 210 273,299 288,159 208,549 224,691

FIRH 27 % 115 HZ MRk B AR IR Z — /bl -

The Notes set out on pages 27 to 115 form an

integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Fund Balances for the year ended 30 June 2018

ity
Consolidated
— i R HERS  Hie R At
A BT
General and
Development Non-
T Reserve  Restricted Other  controlling
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) Fund Funds Funds Interests Total
(k100 (Fff3E 1) (3% 12)
(Note 10) (Note 11) (Note 12)
2017 47 A 1 H&f% Balance as at 1 July 2017 377937 2,592,089 1,194,431 13,637 4,178,094
WHE/(2) Transfer from/(to) Statement
AR E of Comprehensive Income 83,400 44,152 82,543 (302) 209,793
" Exchange differences on translation
5, B
# %@Q%%ﬁﬁ%’ﬁ%ﬁﬁ of financial statements 6,660 - 6,660
- of an overseas joint venture
=y Exchange differences on translation
R N
# %éﬁggl‘ AT of financial statements 853 - 853
N of overseas subsidiaries
A LR Inter-Fund Transfer (51,471) 15,845 35,626 -
2018 4E 6 H 30 H&5fR Balance as at 30 June 2018 409,866 2,659,599 1,312,600 13,335 4,395,400
2016 45 7 H 1 A& Balance as at 1 July 2016 376,088 2,493,919 992,873 14,563 3,877,443
HRE /(F) Transfer fromy/(to) Statement
A E of Comprehensive Income (11,182) 161,315 155,064 (926) 304,271
p < Exchange differences on translation
N B
# ?%Q%%%%Jﬁ W of financial statements (2,954) - (2,954)
N of an overseas joint venture
=4 Exchange differences on translation
4R N S B
# ?f{%ﬁggh AR A of financial statements (666) - (666)
N of overseas subsidiaries
B A R Inter-Fund Transfer 13,031 (59,525) 46,494 -
2017 4 6 H 30 A4 Balance as at 30 June 2017 377,937 2,592,089 1,194,431 13,637 4,178,094
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Statement of Changes in Fund Balances for the year ended 30 June 2018 (Cont'd)

K&
University
— KR RS  HAikts At
L4
General and
Development
e s Reserve  Restricted Other
(AEHEF T3t )
( Expresseci)';n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) Fund Funds Funds Total
(% 10) (ftaE 11 (ftaE 12)
(Note 10) (Note 11) (Note 12)
2017 4E7 H 1 HE& Balance as at 1 July 2017 376,179 2,504,977 1,190,498 4,071,654
S Transfer from Statement
H A £
A 2GR of Comprehensive Income 82,160 34,544 84,131 200,835
T4 R Inter-Fund Transfer (51,471) 15,845 35,626 -
2018 £ 6 H 30 H&5% Balance as at 30 June 2018 406,868 2,555,366 1,310,255 4,272,489
2016 457 A 1 H & Balance as at 1 July 2016 375,472 2,440,072 991,254 3,806,798
2 Transfer from/(to) Statement
WA /(%) 2wl E of Comprehensive Income (12,324) 124,430 152,750 264,856
LM B R Inter-Fund Transfer 13,031 (59,525) 46,494 -
2017 4 6 A 30 H &6k Balance as at 30 June 2017 376,179 2,504,977 1,190,498 4,071,654

GIRAS 27 & 115 HZ Mt AAMBIE L~ -

The Notes set out on pages 27 to 115 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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(a)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA™"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong,
and the Statement of Recommended Practice ("SORP")
for the UGC-funded Institutions issued by the University
Grants Committee ("UGC"). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group and the University are disclosed

below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group and the University. None of these developments
have had a material effect on how the Group's results and
financial position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented. However, additional disclosure has
been included in Note 21(b) to satisfy the new disclosure
requirements introduced by the amendments to HKAS 7,
Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiatives, which require
entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes arising from cash
flows and non-cash changes. The Group and the University
have not applied any new standard or interpretation that is

not yet effective for the current accounting period.

Bassis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2018 comprise the University and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the "Group") and the Group's

interests in an associate and joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except

otherwise stated in the accounting policies set out below:
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- investments in securities (see Note 1(f)(i)); and

- financial instruments with embedded derivatives (see

Note 1(g)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgments
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are

discussed in Note 34.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate financial
statements of the Group made up to the end of the
reporting period and include the Group's interest in an
associate and joint ventures on the basis set out in Note 1(e)
below. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income from the date of their acquisition

or to the date of disposal, as appropriate.
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(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are

considered.

Investments in subsidiaries are consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment. In the
University Statement of Financial Position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses (see

Note 1(k)).

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the University, and
are presented in the consolidated Statement of Financial
Position within equity, separately from funds attributable
to the University. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income as an allocation of the
total surplus or deficit and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the funds

attributable to the University.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated fund balances to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no

gain or loss is recognised.
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(e)

@

(ii)

Associate and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
University has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over its management, including participation in the

financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
University and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets

of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under
the equity method and is initially recorded at cost and
adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the
Group's share of the associate's or the joint venture's net
assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment.
The consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
reflects the Group's share of the post-acquisition post-tax
results of the associate or the joint venture for the year,
including any impairment loss on goodwill relating to the
investment in the associate or the joint venture recognised

for the year (see Note 1(k)).

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate or the joint venture, the Group's interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate or the joint venture. For this
purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount of
the investment under the equity method together with the
Group's long-term interests that in substance form part of
the Group's net investment in the associate or the joint

venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate or joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in the consolidated

Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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(f)

(ii)

(iii

In the Statement of Financial Position, investments in
an associate and joint ventures are stated at cost less

impairment losses (see Note 1(k)).

Investments in debt and equity securities

Investments in debt and equity securities (other than
investments in subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures)
are initially stated at fair value, which is their transaction
price unless it is determined that the fair value at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and that fair
value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market
for an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation
technique that uses only data from observable markets.
Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except where
indicated below. These investments are subsequently

accounted for as follows, depending on their classifications:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as
incurred. At the end of each reporting period, the fair value
is remeasured, with any resultant gains or losses being
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as
income or expenditure. The net gain or loss recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income does not include
any interest earned on these investments as they are
recognised in accordance with the accounting policies set

out in Notes T(v)(iii).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the University
have the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity
are classified as held-to-maturity debt securities. Held-
to-maturity debt securities are stated in the Statement of
Financial Position at amortised cost less impairment losses

(see Note 1(k)).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market for an identical instrument
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at cost
less impairment losses (see Note 1(k)). Dividend income

from equity securities and interest income from debt
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(9)

(h)

securities calculated using the effective interest method are
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in Notes

1(v)(iv) and 1(v)(ii) respectively.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they

expire.

Financial instruments with embedded
derivatives

Financial instruments with embedded derivatives are
recognised initially at fair value. At the end of each
reporting period, the fair value is remeasured. Any gains
or losses on remeasurement of fair value are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as income or

expenditure.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see Note 1(j)) to

earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

When the Group holds an investment property under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for as
an investment property on a property-by-property basis.

Lease payments are accounted for as described in Note 1(j).

Investment properties are stated in the Statement of
Financial Position at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see Note 1(k)). Any gains or losses
arising from the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income. Rental income from investment properties is

accounted for as described in Note 1(v)(v).

Depreciation charge is calculated using the straight line

method to write off the cost of investment properties, less
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(i)

their estimated residual values, if any, over their estimated
useful lives. Estimated useful lives for investment properties

are the same as those for buildings as shown in Note 1(i).

Other properties and equipment

Other properties and equipment are stated in the Statement
of Financial Position at cost less accumulated depreciation

and impairment losses (see Note 1(k)).

The cost of self-constructed items of properties and
equipment includes the costs of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which

they are located.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of properties and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item, and are recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income on the date of

retirement or disposal.

Depreciation charge is calculated using the straight line
method to write off the cost of items of properties and
equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, over
their estimated useful lives since the date of completion/
purchase. The useful life of a particular properties and
equipment is the shorter of its available-for-use period and

the period listed below:

4 / Years

T Land and buildings The shorter of 50 years and the
unexpired term of lease.

TR R4 R Building service systems and equipment 20

HEREE Furniture and fixtures Tto 10

bt Equipment Tto5

[EESE A Library collections 5to 10

50 4F Bk T AURLEH - O -
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Where parts of an item of properties and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on
a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of the item and

its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Leasehold land granted by the Government for usage by the

University is recorded at a nominal amount of $1.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and is stated at cost less any impairment
losses (see Note 1(k)), and is not depreciated. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
properties and equipment when completed and ready for

use.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement

takes the legal form of a lease.

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified

as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property
is classified as investment property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified as investment property,
is accounted for as if held under a finance lease (see

Note 1(h)); and
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- land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at the
inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is also clearly
held under an operating lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time that the lease was
first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the

previous lessee.

(ii) Operating lease charges

(k)

Where the Group has the use of other assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to Statement of Comprehensive Income in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised
in Statement of Comprehensive Income as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals
are charged to Statement of Comprehensive Income in the

accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an

investment property (see Note 1(h)).

Impairment of assets

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and

receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and current and
non-current receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective evidence of

impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of Group about one or more of

the following loss events:
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significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy

or other financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the

debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an

investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in associate and joint ventures (including
those recognised using the equity method (see Note
1(e)), the impairment loss is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment with its carrying
amount in accordance with Note 1(k)(ii). The impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount

in accordance with Note 1 (k)(ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset
where the effect of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities carried at cost are not

reversed.

For debt securities and other financial assets carried at
cost or amortised cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset's original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. If in a subsequent period
the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the

decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring
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after the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through the Statement of Comprehensive
Income. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result
in the asset's carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment loss

been recognised in prior years.

- Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in
respect of accounts receivable included within trade and
other receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses for
doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
accounts receivable directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each reporting date to identify any indications that the
following assets may be impaired or whether an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- investment properties;

- other properties and equipment; and

- investments in subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures in

the Statement of Financial Position.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount

is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows

are discounted to their present values using a discount
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rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income if the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised to reduce the carrying amount of the asset
or assets in the cash-generating unit on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs of

disposal (if measurable), or value in use (if determinable).

- Reversal of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine

the recoverable amount of an asset.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in

which the reversals are recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in first-out
formula and comprises all costs of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location

and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.
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When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an

expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

(m) Accounts and other receivables

(n)

()

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see Note 1(k)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would
be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at
cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see

Note 1(k)).

Interest-bearing borrowings and borrowing
costs

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the period
of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees

payable, using the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs are expensed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in the period in which they are

incurred.

Government loans

Government loans are stated at amortised cost. The
details of the government loans received by the Group are

disclosed in Note 26.1.
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(p) Accounts and other payables

(Q)

U

(s)

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting is immaterial, in which case they are

stated at cost.

Deferred capital funds

Deferred capital funds are Government grants and donations
earmarked for capital expenditure received and receivable
by the Group. These funds, when received or become
receivable, are initially recorded as Deferred Capital Funds
and shown in the Statement of Financial Position. When the
related assets are put into use, an amount equivalent to the
depreciation charge (see Note 1(i)) of the related properties
and equipment is transferred from Deferred Capital Funds
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income as income of

the same period.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits and short-term deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, having less than three

months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

Salaries, gratuities, paid annual leave, leave passage and
any costs to the Group on monetary and non-monetary
benefits provided to employees are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered by employees

of the Group.

Contributions to the retirement schemes, including
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme as required under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, are recognised as expenses in the Statement of

Comprehensive Income as incurred.

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when

the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
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benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs involving

the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any

adjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities, arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets, to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the asset can be utilised, are

recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rate enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group and the University has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,

it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
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be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure

expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the University
and the income and expenditure, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the Statement

of Comprehensive Income as follows:

Government grants

Government grants mainly consist of block grants, matching
grants, supplementary grants, earmarked grants and capital

grants.

Government grants without a specific purpose attached are
recognised as revenue in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income on an accrual basis. Any block grants which are
received in excess of the related expenditure are transferred
to General and Development Reserve Fund in accordance

with the requirements of the UGC.

Government grants for specific purposes are recognised
in the Statement of Financial Position initially as deferred
income when there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with the conditions

attached to them. Other grants that compensate the Group
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for operating expenditure incurred, are recognised as
revenue in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the related

expenditure are incurred.

Government grants spent on capital expenditure are initially
recorded as deferred capital funds and recognised as
income over the useful lives of the related assets when they
are put into use to the extent of their related depreciation

charge for the year.

Tuitions, programme and other fees

Tuitions, programme and other fees are recognised as
income on an accrual basis over the duration of the
programmes and unearned fees received are treated as

deferred income.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder's right to receive payment is

established.

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised

when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in
equal installments over the accounting periods covered by
the lease term. Lease incentives granted are recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an integral part

of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.

Donations

Donations with general purposes are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income when the Group

becomes entitled to the donations and it is probable that
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they will be received, which is generally upon receipt of
cash. Donations with specific purposes designated by the
donors are initially recognised as deferred income when
received, and then recognised as income to the extent of

the related expenditure incurred during the year.

(vii) Service income

W)

Service income is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income when the relevant service is

rendered.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair

value was measured.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the average foreign exchange
rates for the year. Statement of Financial Position items are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the reporting date. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised as a movement in the Exchange

Reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognised
in the Exchange Reserve which relate to that operation
outside Hong Kong is included in the calculation of the gain

or loss on disposal.
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i)

Related parties

A person, or a close member of that person's family, is

related to the Group if that person:
(@ has control or joint control over the Group;
(b) has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or the Group's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(@) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and

fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(b) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or a joint venture of a member of

a group of which the other entity is a member);

(c) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

(d) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(e) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity

related to the Group;

(f) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (i);

(g) A person identified in (i)(@) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

(h) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to

the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Government Subventions

B K&
Consolidated University
(AR T et )
( Expresse(ﬁllfn thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017 2018 2017
BE g Subventions from UGC
R Block Grants 1,028,904 1009778 1,028,904 1,009,778
HiBh#E Supplementary Grants 75,861 56,054 75,861 56,054
1,104,765 1,065,832 1,104,765 1,065,832
e $ B4 (K 2.1)  Matching Grants (Note 2.1) 536 681 536 681
e K Earmarked Grants
WF5 Research 52,838 47,156 52,838 47,156
HoAts Others 17,505 12,599 17,505 12,599
HHE EEF Housing Related 7,661 7,812 7,661 7,812
78,004 67,567 78,004 67,567
R KA Rates and Government Rent Refund 42,238 41,180 31,990 30,932
SRR R - - .
TolE TR Capital Grants and AA & I Block Allocation 90,020 96,036 90,020 96,036
1,315,563 1,271,296 1,305,315 1,261,048
Grants from Government and
BURE B A B Related Organisations
H g Matching Grant for
AL b A B ST A Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme 751 430 751 430
Ao B 4 (Mt 2.2)  for Post-secondary Students (Note 2.2)
& ERAEIRINC Subsidy on Exchange
Gt (M3 2.3)  for Post-secondary Students (Note 2.3) 2,497 2931 2,497 2931
HFEAFIE Subsidy on Exchange to
[—#—B MR "Belt and Road" Regions 683 260 683 260
G (B3 2.4) for Post-secondary Students (Note 2.4)
oAb Others 48,356 52,432 48,356 52,432
1,367,850 1,327,349 1,357,602 1,317,101
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2.3 B B4R E B #
Subsidy on Exchange for Post-secondary Students

RRF R R R > BB g S S B R R R B SRR o FEMUMERE I o A R K R e BUR M
5 AV)G) o BT B Y S X e SRR AR R G B o T A WA A B 2

In compliance with the requirements of Education Bureau which funds Subsidy on Exchange for Post-secondary
Students, the funding received and the payments have to be separately disclosed. For the purposes of this Note,
different from the recognition policies as stated in Note 1(v)(i) of the Group's significant accounting policies, all

expenditure funded by the subsidy is written off in the year of expenditure. The related income and expenditure
are detailed as follows:

BaRkkR
Consolidated and University
(AT 7Tt
( ExpressedTiEn thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017
ERH R Opening Balance 898 8,094
e BB Add: Subsidy Income 3,846 300
FLEMA Interest Income 5 6
3,851 306
e BEEDE Less: Subsidy Refund (704) (4,565)
WA Total Income 3,147 (4,259)
W 3 Less: Expenditure
LIRS Subsidy to Students 2,502 2,937
S| Total Expenditure 2,502 2,937
R LR Closing Balance 1,543 898




2.4 HEBERE [—%— K] W8 g8l
Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road” Regions for Post-secondary Students

BRFEHE R > B E B B — A — % 3t R S R B R0 L S B o EUM R IR - AR R R R
B FFBORMEE 1)) - BT AR S BB 1S B & 1E S A 2 MGTEH - TR A B 2 oL

In compliance with the requirements of Education Bureau which funds Subsidy on Exchange to "Belt and Road"
Regions for Post-secondary Students, the funding received and payments have to be separately disclosed. For the
purposes of this Note, different from the recognition policies as stated in Note 1(v)(i) of the Group's significant
accounting policies, all expenditure funded by the Scheme is written off in the year of expenditure. The related
income and expenditure are detailed as follows:

FARKE
Consolidated and University
(LIVBHEToeRh)
( Expressedjli:n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017
EY R Opening Balance 2,854 3,114
e BB Add: Subsidy Income 600 -
FE A Interest Income 5 4
605 4
W BREREENE Less: Subsidy Refund (2,356)
YN Total Income (1,751) 4
B 3 Less: Expenditure
BAERNE Subsidy to Students 688 264
S| Total Expenditure 688 264
i S5 Closing Balance 415 2,854
3. 2% - ABRKHEMKE
Tuition, Programme and Other Fees
BARKE
Consolidated and University
(LIVBHEToTRE)
( Expressedﬂi:n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017
E 4 gopdiE T UGC-funded Programmes
B Tuition Fees 377,091 368,383
e B A i Programme and Other Fees 6,994 7,112
384,085 375,495
FEHE o B RAR Non-UGC-funded Programmes
B Tuition Fees 757,601 725,931
R B A i Programme and Other Fees 18,115 14,026
775,716 739,957
1,159,801 1115452




4. FBRFHRERA

Interest and Net Investment Income

Ba KE
Consolidated University
(LUsH TRt
( ExpressedTiDn thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017 2018 2017
L /R Dividends from Listed Securities 66 55 66 55
N iTicid ) held by the Group/University
LM B BEE 52, 75 Interest Income and Net Exchange 11,105 8,543 10,504 8,327
i i Gains
TEEEFREZER L NetRealised and Unrealised
FEBF A Gains on Trading Securities 223,758 299,026 223,758 299,026
HoAts Others 30 33 37 57
234,959 307,657 234,365 307,465
ih
5 . j:ﬁ T}\ »Ln [=] j:ﬁ »H
Donations and Benefactions
A KE
Consolidated University
(LAVH T oeat)
( Expressez;];n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017 2018 2017
HEEH Capital Projects 7,176 7,501 7,176 7,501
RRIE) A4 2 FR Endowment 10,452 19,637 10,452 19,637
HAth Others 58,706 74,766 52,325 69,281
SR - SRS Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries 11,329 12,504 11,329 12,504
87,663 114,408 81,282 108,923
i
Note:

TERE201896 /130 H AL - K IR R A7 5 1 NG B 3 3 M nt H e 1980 R A I 71,5688 00 (2016- 1741 < 7558570) K 1,18587C (2016-174 /% 312HC) «
During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group and the University received donations and benefactions of $15.68 million (2016-17 = $7.55 million) and $11.85 million (2016-17 -

$3.12 million) respectively from The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust.

52



Al 78 AR 5 W A

Auxiliary Services Income

e
Consolidated University

(LAEWToest)
( Expressed)Tn thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017 2018 2017
JE R A Consultancy Income 15,073 17,466 14,565 17,357
i IR License Fees 6,251 7,409 4,239 4,531
AW A Rental Income 22,694 22,762 10,819 10,645
B TR Residence Halls 44,295 44213 44,295 44213
MR WA Service Income 140,812 135,624 142,456 136,556
WEEEMLE Staff Quarters Rental 4,210 4,652 4,210 4,652

233,335 232,126 220,584 217,954
HAt ke A
Other Income

ey RE
Consolidated University
(LA ToeH )
( Expressedﬂi:n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017 2018 2017
EERILA Conference Income 2,607 3,741 2,607 3,741
B R Fees on Student Activities 6,028 6,132 6,028 6,132
e Miscellaneous 32,565 36,988 15,985 20,181
W5 Research 10,719 15,898 10,719 15,898
51,919 62,759 35,339 45,952

Mt
Note:

T 20186 30 H 1F4E 1 - KBHIIME R A2 HE7F United Board for Christian Higher Education in Asia g A 23 13470 (2016- 17461« 1H7T) -
During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group and the University received other income of $0.13 million (2016-17 : $0.01 million) from United Board for Christian Higher
Education in Asia.



x i

Expenditure

oty
Consolidated
Wk BFT B e Mgt
(LN ) Staff Costs Operating o
( Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) and Benefits Expenses Depreciation Total
B2 B KA Teaching, Learning and Research
& KR Teaching and Research 1,384,612 310,667 47,216 1,742,495
S Library 45,176 13,546 24,939 83,661
e S R Central Computing Facilities 68,503 24,547 5,672 98,722
Fofth 2 2 R 5 Other Academic Services 79,077 10,643 333 90,053
1,577,368 359,403 78,160 2,014,931
HE Y% (M5E8.1)  Institutional Support (Note 8.1)
EH R — S Management and General 229,326 44,090 7,194 280,610
e LA BB Premises and Related Expenses 70,929 254,386 110,906 436,221
B R— BB IR Students and General Education Services 62,762 109,277 1,254 173,293
’ ’ ’ ’
Fofth 35 ) Other Activities 13,232 7,802 3,884 24,918
376,249 415,555 123,238 915,042
2018 4 BEARE Total Expenditure 2018 1,953,617 774,958 201,398 2,929,973
#E - BE A Teaching, Learning and Research
HE LR Teaching and Research 1,351,422 292,987 52,915 1,697,324
e e Library 43,211 13,548 27,266 84,025
Hh ol S R Central Computing Facilities 67,781 16,965 6,723 91,469
HoAth 2 s Other Academic Services 74,359 12,041 107 86,507
1,536,773 335,541 87,011 1,959,325
HE A% (M5E8.1)  Institutional Support (Note 8.1)
ERR T Management and General 214,337 34,349 5,210 253,896
B B BB Premises and Related Expenses 67,658 279,600 121,476 468,734
B Je— I B s Students and General Education Services 58,389 105,969 1,758 166,116
Fo At 35 ) Other Activities 17911 15,079 3,216 36,206
358,295 434997 131,660 924,952
2017 4R LR Total Expenditure 2017 1,895,068 770,538 218,671 2,884,277

4



il ()

Expenditure (Cont'd)

K
University
i 3sERE Sy B e Mz
L) Staff Costs Operating N
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) and Benefits Expenses Depreciation Total
B~ BE KA Teaching, Learning and Research
B KR Teaching and Research 1,379,995 309,033 43,929 1,732,957
B 2 4 Library 45,176 13,546 24,939 83,661
T B Central Computing Facilities 68,503 24,494 5,672 98,669
LA BER R Other Academic Services 78,294 13,038 323 91,655
1,571,968 360,111 74,863 2,006,942
%4 (W5 8.1)  Institutional Support (Note 8.1)
E R Management and General 229,326 41,337 7,194 277,857
W A B =2 Premises and Related Expenses 70,929 232,406 110,901 414,236
B R — R E R Students and General Education Services 62,762 109,277 1,254 173,293
HoAh s 8y Other Activities 8,518 6,710 582 15,810
371,535 389,730 119,931 881,196
2018 4 BEAE S M Total Expenditure 2018 1,943,503 749,841 194,794 2,888,138
HE - B R Teaching, Learning and Research
HE KB Teaching and Research 1,344,271 289,879 50,191 1,684,341
FE 2 Library 43,211 13,548 27,266 84,025
T B Central Computing Facilities 67,781 16,943 6,723 91,447
HAoh 2 2 s Other Academic Services 73,611 14,198 98 87,907
1,528,874 334,568 84,278 1,947,720
B (M5E 8.1)  Institutional Support (Note 8.1)
B R — M Management and General 214,337 36,329 5,210 255,876
W A B =2 Premises and Related Expenses 67,658 260,273 121,472 449,403
B R—Resa s Students and General Education Services 58,389 105,969 1,758 166,116
Fofth 35 ) Other Activities 13,443 14,290 1,143 28,876
353,827 416,861 129,583 900,271
2017 4FJE 45 Total Expenditure 2017 1,882,701 751,429 213,861 2,847,991




8.1 HEXZEZEE LW

Analysis of Operating Expenses - Institutional Support

oty K&
Consolidated University
(LA Toeit )
( Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017 2018 2017
EER B Management and General
4/ EE Advertisement/Promotion 5,783 6,443 3,403 3,047
BT 5 Auditor's Remuneration 792 698 702 605
E) Equipment 4,510 2,821 4,510 2,817
HAER X General Expenses 20,292 12,552 20,996 18,870
— AR b General Insurance 1,018 1,639 943 1,563
i R Professional Fees 2,626 2,203 2,275 1,975
FHHLEH 57 Recruitment Expenses 5,438 4,967 5,415 4,940
=R Staff Development 2,146 1,595 2,146 1,595
pEL Transportation 1,485 1,431 947 917
44,090 34,349 41,337 36,329
W T B 3 Premises and Related Expenses
WaTHEE L% Campus Repair and Maintenance 43,629 45,773 43,629 45,773
TR R % Cleaning and Security Services 70,680 64,639 67,003 61,235
A Equipment 489 700 360 449
AR General Expenses 7,183 4,757 6,712 5,576
2= K AR Government Rent and Rates 42,456 41,454 32,117 31,116
TR Minor Works 7,897 48,037 5,322 46,463
WAEME Office Rental 11,982 8,450 8,906 5,456
LI L Property Insurance 2,494 1,730 2,302 1,520
KR % 2B 3 Safety Expenses 788 689 788 689
W BT a4 MR Staff Quarters Repair and Maintenance 2,297 2,499 2,297 2,499
K~ E R Utilities 64,491 60,872 62,970 59,497
254,386 279,600 232,406 260,273
Bk R — R FE M Student and General Education Services
P Congregation Expenses 1,512 1,539 1,512 1,539
) Equipment 956 791 956 791
e 4 Examination Fee 586 577 586 577
i NES General Expenses 3,880 5,606 3,880 5,606
SR E L Joint Sports Centre 1,297 933 1,297 933
IR Y I B fE Medical and Dental Care 2,929 2,631 2,929 2,631
HHIEE) Music Activities 712 668 712 668
BRI Residence Halls Expenses 7,548 8,233 7,548 8,233
BB S Scholarships 69,219 65,228 69,219 65,228
B Y Student Activities 9,646 8,726 9,646 8,726
B hE Student Exchange Programme 10,992 11,037 10,992 11,037
109,277 105,969 109,277 105,969
oAby Y Other Activities 7,802 15,079 6,710 14,290
415,555 434997 389,730 416,861




8.2 ¥k B & K
Higher Paid Staff Remuneration

BE 2018 % 6 A 30 H L F R RERR B MRS F « Bi# 180 B TEHAFTHTWT :

For the year ended 30 June 2018, the number of higher paid staff with total remuneration” exceeding $1.8 million is

as follows:
2018 2017
N N
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
$1,800,001 - 1,950,000 29 30
$1,950,001 - 2,100,000 26 23
$2,100,001 - 2,250,000 13 17
$2,250,001 - 2,400,000 1 9
$2,400,001 - 2,550,000 9 6
$2,550,001 - 2,700,000 7 6
$2,700,001 - 2,850,000 2 1
$2,850,001 - 3,000,000 1 1
$3,000,001 - 3,150,000 - 1
$3,150,001 - 3,300,000 1 1
$3,300,001 - 3,450,000 2 1
$3,450,001 - 3,600,000 1 1
$7,200,001 - 7,350,000 - 1
$7,350,001 - 7,500,000 1 -
103 98

* AT - A B KB A B - BRI FEEAT - ARSI (FRE [FE ) AFEE - IRE R R BTN - BRI HE - R BRI %
BRI HN BTIE AT 2 R MR (15T - LABEE H AR AF SR (AT
Remuneration includes salary, contribution to gratuity/retirement plans, cash allowances, housing benefits, individual income tax of People's Republic of China ("PRC"),
passage allowances and education allowances. For staff whose quarters were provided as part of their remuneration package, the ratable values assessed by the Rating and
Valuation Department were used as the values of their housing benefits in determining their total remuneration in the year.
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(a)

(b)

Income and Expenditure by Segment

Disclosures regarding segment reporting are included as
a requirement of the SORP and are not designed to fully
comply with the requirements of HKFRS 8 "Operating

segments".

In accordance with the SORP, the University discloses
an analysis of income and expenditure recognised by its
reported segments that are defined by source of funding,
namely UGC-funded Activities and Non-UGC-funded

Activities.

UGC-funded Activities

UGC-funded Activities include programmes, research
projects and activities supported by UGC grants. UGC
grants represent a major funding source of the University

which is used to support the UGC-funded activities.

Non-UGC-funded Activities

Non-UGC-funded Activities represent other activities
funded by sources other than UGC grants, including self-
financed funding, donations and grants from government
agencies other than UGC. These Non-UGC-funded
Activities (i.e. research projects) can complement teaching
and learning and student activities for the benefit of

UGC-funded students.

The University has guidelines and policies governing
its operation to avoid cross subsidisation of UGC and
Non-UGC resources between UGC-funded Activities and
Non-UGC-funded Activities as stipulated in the UGC Notes
on Procedures. Income and expenditure of the activities
are accounted for by sources of funding with direct costs

identified and supported by the related funding sources.

Teaching and research expenses for Non-UGC-funded
Activities include teaching staff cost allocated according
to the standard rates of academic staff for self-financed
programmes and research staff cost incurred for each

research project.
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Income and Expenditure by Segment
(Cont'd)

Overhead expenses incurred by central administrative
departments and supporting units, including Library, Central
Computing Facilities, Other Academic Services, Management
and General, and Student and General Educational Services,
are based on pre-determined percentage of the income
or project expenditures or actual time cost incurred for

relevant Non-UGC-funded Activities.

Premises and Related Expenses charged to Non-UGC-
funded Activities (i.e. overhead cost of accommodation) are
determined with reference to market rental and the related

facility management expenses.

In accordance with the UGC guidelines, the University
may waive the overhead expenses for these Non-UGC-
funded Activities that bring academic value and enhance

the development of the University.
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10. General and Development Reserve Fund

The General and Development Reserve Fund ("GDRF")
represents the balance of recurrent grants from the UGC
which is allowed to be carried forward from one funding
period to another. The balance of the GDRF at the end of
a funding period (usually a triennium) that can be carried
over to the next funding period should not exceed 20% of
the University's approved Recurrent Grants, other than the

Earmarked Grants for Specific Purposes, for that funding

= 10.1 0 period. Such balance may only be used for supporting UGC-
approved activities of the University. The fund balance with
movements is listed in Note 10.1.
101 - RBERMEHELED
Movements of General and Development Reserve Fund
A
Consolidated_ |
(AW T TRt
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dolars )
2017 %7 A 1 H&R Balance as at 1 July 2017 377937
LR 1 A T A R Transfer from Statement of Comprehensive Income 83,400
He AT R (T ) Inter-Fund Transfer (Note) (51,471)
2018 42 6 H 30 H#&:fR Balance as at 30 June 2018 409,866
2016 4F7 A 1 A& Balance as at 1 July 2016 376,088
R IR R Transfer to Statement of Comprehensive Income (11,182)
HE G A TR ( BfRE ) Inter-Fund Transfer (Note) 13,031
2017 4 6 A 30 H 458k Balance as at 30 June 2017 377,937
KB
University |
(AW T Tt
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dolars )
2017 %7 A 1 A& Balance as at 1 July 2017 376,179
W E AT R R Transfer from Statement of Comprehensive Income 82,160
FER AR (k) Inter-Fund Transfer (Note) (51,471)
2018 4E 6 A 30 H 456k Balance as at 30 June 2018 406,868
2016 4F7 A 1 A& Balance as at 1 July 2016 375,472
P 2 A T A 2 3% Transfer to Statement of Comprehensive Income (12,324)
M B R (FEEE) Inter-Fund Transfer (Note) 13,031
2017 4£ 6 H 30 H 45t Balance as at 30 June 2017 376,179

Note:

G TR G 1 ()8 LR S PTA2 CERO IR - HLZES o — A R B A e ~ ARG R ) R M A T o

Inter-Fund Transfer includes value of services provided by one cost centre to another, which was funded by General and Development Reserve Fund, different Restricted ancl/

or Other Funds.
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11.

Restricted Funds

Restricted Funds are designated for specific purposes and
classified separately according to their natures and uses as
described in Note 11.1. The relevant fund balances with

movements are listed in Note 11.2.

11.1 Restricted Funds are classified under the

following items:

Endowment Fund is mainly donations on which the University
would, according to the wishes of the donors or for strategic
reasons, keep the principal intact and only use income
generated from the fund to support University activities of

designated purposes.

Self-financed Activities have accumulated surplus to be used
on the related self-financed activities generating such surplus.
They are therefore all designated for specific purposes and

are rarely used to finance other activities of the Group.

Operation Reserves are provisions for planned expenditure
of certain self-financed activities with a specific nature e.g.

building repair and maintenance reserve for the hostel.

Scholarships, Prizes & Bursaries and Loan Funds are used to
award students according to the established principles of the

University.

Unspent Balance for Research represents the total remaining
balances of funds designated for different research projects

supported by non-government subventions.

University Capital Works Fund represents the unspent balance
of all capital projects funded by non-government fund plus an
amount equivalent to the net book values of those buildings

financed by such funding.

Donations and Others are funds other than those stated

above and are to be used for certain designated purposes.

Exchange Reserve is the exchange difference arising from
the translation of the results of operations and assets and
liabilities of entities outside Hong Kong into Hong Kong

dollars.
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12.

Other Funds

Other Funds are funds other than Restricted Funds. They are
used to support the University's general activities without
designated purposes and are generally grouped into the
items as described in Note 12.1. The relevant fund balances

with movements are listed in Note 12.2.

12.1 Other Funds are classified under the following

@

items:

Unspent Balance of Matching Grants represents the total
remaining balances of funds from various rounds of the
Matching Grant Schemes. According to the prevailing rules
and regulations promulgated by the UGC, the balance
can be carried forward without time limit for supporting

UGC-approved activities of the University.

Endowment Fund is mainly donations without designated
purposes on which the University would keep the principal
intact and only use the income generated from the fund to

support University's activities in general purposes.

Self-financed Activities have accumulated surplus to be
used on self-financing activities. They are not designated for
specific purposes and are used to finance the Group's and

the University's activities in general.

Donations and Others are funds other than those stated

above and are to be used without designated purposes.
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14. R B AE 2K E
Investment in Subsidiaries

KE
University
(LI Toest )
(Expressed ?n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017
BB > BARE (M3 17)
Unlisted shares, at cost (Note 17) 100 100

LUTR R A R E M A R RES © BROIAN2H > FTHe A 2 B39 A i i o Bbo 39 B I GE 1(d) P 2 10 52 45 Tl i ol

I AR TR B AR A IS IR A o

The following list contains the particulars of the University's subsidiaries. The class of shares held is ordinary unless
otherwise stated. All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under Note 1(d) and have been consolidated

into the Group's financial statements.

FrAfER L L3
Proportion of Ownership Interest
NGRS FAT BT KBTS KE WEAF FEEHS
BT EPRREL el A
Name of Company Particulars of University's Held Held Principal
Issued and  Effective by the by Activity
Paid-up Capital Interest University Subsidiary
(@) wEMBOL R :
Place of incorporation and operation : Hong Kong
HKBU Holdings Limited* 2 ) ) PERB AT
2 shares 100% 100% Holding Company
BB R R A TR A ) 100,000 k& 1009 1009 FHF B P AR5
HKBU Science Consultancy 100,000 shares 00% 00% Scientific Research and
Company Limited* Consultancy Services
R AR AERT I A R A ) 2% LT 7T R B
Institute for the Advancement of 2 shares 100% 100%  Chinese Medicine Research
Chinese Medicine (IACM) Limited* and Development
AR M o S
Smartlife Limited* 2 shares 00% 00% Property Holding
BUCM Limited* GELSE . ) TR
Limited by 100% 100%  Chinese Medicine Research
guarantee
7 Y A AT R A PR R AR . ) B R e A R A
Hong Kong Creative Arts Centre Limited by 100% 100% Promotion and Development
Limited* guarantee of Creative Arts
BUE I A KB BT IR 2 . . g
(Bi5E) 2 shares 50% 50% Holding Company
Hong Kong Baptist University
Investment Limited* (Note)
BRI A A Al 1 S kA L 5
HKBU R&D Licensing Limited* 1 share 00% 00% Intellectual Properties

o R G TR TR
Not audited by KPMG.

Commercialisation and Trading




14. N BAG 2% & (4)

Investment in Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

RG22 LR
Proportion of Ownership Interest
AT 24T BATRET KA AL RE AR TEE
AT EPRRER A E¥E)
Name of Company Particulars of University's Held Held Principal
Issued and  Effective by the by Activity

Paid-up Capital Interest  University Subsidiary

(b R L i A vy

Place of incorporation and operation : PRC

s e K ERRIN 7 b N ) , B R m

Institute for Research and N/A 100% 100% ) Training and Research
Continuing Education*

FREHER (FY) HRAF 600 H70 ) , TR RS

BU Consultancy (Shenzhen) Limited* $6 million 100% ) 100% Consultancy Service

AR KB BRA FH(HEEE ) 2,500 #70 ) 1000 T8 K2 e T A 5

Changshu HKBU Technology $25 million 50% ) 00% Research and Consultancy
Company Limited*(Note) Service

* o R GRS
Not audited by KPMG.

Note:

Bl R O BLGHRA A [ L8711 )2 50%BHEHF =T 1A o ST RIFZIERIRH [k [k ] ) » KBRS L TG fr A 2 HOg(r - e — e T 1 B PR
BHEZL A o F=Tr R F TGN AR FIGE (W HE R TEEZ RSN INBAR L AT (T (TR 2 A R AT

50% of the equity interest of Hong Kong Baptist University Investment Limited (the "Company") was held by third party. According to the Subscription &
Shareholders' Agreement (the "Agreement"), the University has a majority of the Company's board of directors and is solely empowered to manage and operate
the Company. The third party shall neither be entitled to any profit or assets (save and except for interest in certain assets as defined in the Agreement) nor be
liable for any loss or liabilities of the Company.



15. W& 26 2 i

Interest in an Associate

B K%
Consolidated University
LIS T-IeRT)
:éxpressedj?n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017 2018 2017
TN 2 2 Y Share of Net Assets 1,313 991 - -
BHRE 1(e) A E 2 ME— e A RV ERHINT
The following are particulars of the only associate as defined under Note 1(e):
RffEm 2 R
Proportion of Ownership Interest
W A vl 2 (G S GRS BT MBS KRR PTG R TR
B B, JEATEE H g A
Name of Associate Form of Place of Particulars of Group's Held Principal
Business Incorporation Issued and Effective by the Activity
Structure  and Operation  Paid Up Capital Interest University
HA LR DL AT T ARAER BRI
AR R
Hong Kong Organic Corporation Hong Kong Limited by 33.3% 33.3% Organic
Resource Centre Guarantee Certification
Certification Limited* Service
X RHEREHITIHE -
Not audited by KPMG.
Wit 2w Y B R
Summary financial information of the Associate:
B A BoRHER s AER/0EER)  REIRA/ (Ej‘;ﬁ)
Mu\%ﬁ
Assets  Liabilities Equity ~ Revenue Surplus/(Deficit) Total
IS Comprehensive
JUR
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) Income/(Loss)
2018
100% 100% 4,347 (409) 3,938 11,921 965 965
REFBEHIE  Group's
TP 2 Effective Interest 1,449 (136) 1,313 3,974 322 322
2017
100% 100% 6,171 (3,197) 2,974 8,560 (401) (4071)
KEFEHL  Group's
IS Effective Interest 2,057 (1,066) 991 2,853 (134) (134)

Wt 2w TR e A R BRI 2 A A B R R AR S FE MR R ER B A -

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in the Group's consolidated financial statements and

considered to be not individually material.




16. 7 & 2 HHE 2 1 i

Interests in Joint Ventures

e KE
Consolidated University
(RUBHF TEi )
( Expresse(ﬁllfn thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017 2018 2017
RS BAE Unlisted Shares, at cost - - 146,042 146,042
JEAG 2 B TR Share of Net Assets 234,918 224,331 - -
BIEE 1e) MAE 2 BB ERIT
The following are particulars of the joint ventures as defined under Note 1(e):
PR hEfL 2t
Proportion of Ownership Interest
AEH A s LA E K BeA RIS KA REE B =i
BRI AT B )
Name of Joint Ventures Place of Particulars of Group's Held Principal
Incorporation Issued and Effective by the Activity
and Operation  Paid Up Capital Interest University
B R BERT T A R A A (R A BRAE R LT T
Baptist Chinese Medicine Hong Kong Limited by 50% 50% Chinese
Research Centre Limited* Cuarantee Medicine
Research
AL RS — A B KA ailc] NN fefitm s
T 5 B PR ER B (iR ) 1.5t BH
Beijing Normal University —Hong Kong PRC RMB 50% 50% Provision
Baptist University United 150 million of Higher
International College* (Note) Education

* o IR R R T
Not audited by KPMG.

Wit -
Note:

JRAFREAS - Bl O AL BT (R (A EIRESE) ) mALRIEASE (FRE (AR ) ) R R EAR (R [REAE] ) BRI o BRI I & B ben
A AR (B A RSN ER AL hALATA IR B A 545 I 0T (CRPTAL o 1 52 B K BRI R EY A REG I AR R - SR HEI 7 A2 B9 2 e B I
G E R 2 A o AL G IR BT AR R P I LR 2 At AR o B BB 3 RO SR - et P S, GEMEA TS 150 AR - A2

BHEESHE

Beijing Normal University - Hong Kong Baptist University United International College ("UIC") was co-founded by the Beijing Normal University ("BNU") and Hong Kong
Baptist University ("HKBU"). According to the Collaborative Agreement on the establishment of UIC, its governing board (which is the governing body of UIC) would have

equal number of representatives from BNU and HKBU. As neither HKBU nor BNU has the ability to control the governing board of UIC, the University has therefore accounted

for its investment in UIC as a joint venture using the equity accounting method for UIC's results of operation and net assets. UIC is incorporated in the PRC and is a Private Non-

Corporate Entity with a registered capital of RMB 150 million. Its principal activity is provision of higher education.



16. REERBZHER ()
Interests in Joint Ventures (Cont'd)

BTN MBS RN — KRB PTG E R

Summary Financial Information of Joint Ventures — Group's Effective Interest:

(LAt Tocst )

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017
JEiE) & Non-Current Assets 1,623,725 868,957
B E Current Assets 243,693 83,759
MEALE Current Liabilities (876,265) (438,478)
FERBAME Non-Current Liabilities (756,235) (289,907)
R E Net Assets 234,918 224,331
A Income 587,815 480,259
b2 Expenditure (583,888) (451,312)
AR B R Profit for the Year 3,927 28,947
2T AS SR Total Comprehensive Income 3,927 28,947

BRI AR OB B AR S RS TR AR LA T (R AR A -

The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in the Group's consolidated financial statements and

considered to be not individually material.




17. &

Investments
Fay K&
Consolidated University
(LA TRt )
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017 2018 2017 8
(0)
17.1 RERE Non-current Investments I
FrA M A 2 5 Held-to-maturity Debt Securities 2.000 9000 ) )
(HESSMEASE ) (BF3E)  (at amortised cost) (Note) ’ /
RN A 2 B E Investment in Subsidiaries i ) 100 100
(AAE ) (BRE 14) (at cost) (Note 14)
HTHB AR Z B Loans to Subsidiaries*
(BASE ) (at cost) - - 2,000 5,832
FERIHBEE A5 Total Non-current Investments 2,000 2,000 2,100 5,932
17.2 & Current Investments
FFHZBIMHE 2 &5 Held-to-maturity Debt Securities i 47971 _ 47971
(HEBSTARE ) (MEE)  (at amortised cost) (Note) ' ,
M EEES (ARMEE)  Trading Securities (at fair value)
B2 Debt Securities 1,452,366 1,267,843 1,452,366 1,267,843
il Equity Securities 1,464,081 1,445,444 1,464,081 1,445,444
ek AT .
miggIh De::saettlg/e Financial Instruments 7,221 2154 7,221 2154
BEHL Investment Funds 1,050,266 758,855 1,050,266 758,855
St Ly N SN . . .
WHEASTETHR Financial Instruments with
ZERTH Embedded Derivatives ) S i S
il ; ; ; ;
& fg%@j HESE TOE\'/Z';?:;?! Current Assets in 3,973,934 3544891 3,973,934 3,544,891
AT EL o
m% %rﬂi]:,\z De[il;/ké)litlli:izsﬁnanc'al Instruments (1,027) (4,644) (1,027) (4,644)
RHRE A5t Total Current Investments 3,972,907 3540247 3,972,907 3,540,247
g ag k| Total Investments 3,974,907 3,542,247 3,975,007 3,546,179
W
Note:
FFH EFIH H 2 A
Total Fair Value of Held-to-maturity Debt Securities 2,000 49,430 47,430

* o IR - ML AT 202043 /12 H (E# -

The loan bears interest rate at 8% per annum, compounded annually, is unsecured and is repayable on 2 March 2020.




173 @£ SMER

Interest in Investment Funds

TR S KBRS G AR R A RE 4 A 45 W e 2 Tl
The table below describes the types of structured entities that the Group and the University do not consolidate but
in which it holds an interest.

AR PR RER B B OB A O A
Type of Structure Entity ~ Nature and Purpose Interest Held by the Group
and the University
REHte DMRRES =7 BO 8 8 U 7 I 130 A e A i PR A T AT B
Investment funds To manage assets on behalf of third party investors and  Investements in units
generate fees for the investement managers. issued by the funds.

OB 15 AT Y LA T AR
These vehicles are financed through the issue of units to
investors.

REHEA BCE N TG B B GRS AT o S BCE B B AR Sy R BRI A « T Sy
BRI -

The University holds interest in investment funds investing in the following asset classes. The purpose of these
investment funds is to generate investment income for the University. These investment funds are managed by
professional fund managers.

TRI LR R R GRS TRA RER o RO RS IR R A A 2 B U A IR A
The table below sets out interest held by the Group and the University in investment funds. The maximum
exposure to loss is the carrying amount of the financial assets held:

ERARKE

Consolidated and University

201846 H 30 H
30 June 2018

BRI firf & 45 H G E DA B RN A
el e e LN

S R IR E E

Investment fund classes Number of  Total Net Assets ~ Carrying Amount included
Investee Funds in investments at Fair

Value through Statement
of Comprehensive Income

(LAsH TRt !
( Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) as Income or Expendlture
ESpUIE- S Hedge Funds 3 107,635,466 626,207
FEHER GRS Real Estate Investment Trust Funds 1 8,633,350 422,317
Baptist Foundation Funds Baptist Foundation Funds 2 10,955,549 1,742

S Total 1,050,266




173 K&ELMHER (5)

Interest in Investment Funds (Cont'd)

Ba Rk

Consolidated and University
2017 %6 A 30H
30 June 2017
PE AR iEsd=e-%x% {5| M A L2 SefR{ERF A
%EWE%TWAQ
Y BOE R T {E
Investment fund classes Number of  Total Net Assets ~ Carrying Amount included
Investee Funds in investments at Fair
Value through Statement
(LT 5 of Comprehensive Income
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) as Income or Expendlture
EapliE S0 Hedge Funds 3 103,512,801 567,250
FEHERERETHES  Real Estate Investment Trust Funds 1 7,805,800 189,912
Baptist Foundation Funds Baptist Foundation Funds 2 10,811,744 1,693
Ha Total 758,855

PhEFT A SE RS R B AR E o« KM R AN - 3 BRI ] s SR 4 L B AT A -
All the above investment funds are passive investments only. The Group and the University has no control of,
influence on or financial support to any of these funds.

R G AR b A e R B R (A 51 -

The total net asset valuations are the best estimations obtained from various fund managers.

REL R R R v R S P B B 4 o

The Group and the University can redeem units in the above investment funds upon request.

18. it 18. Inventories

T 15 o R 2 B B N ) AT AL g A Y Inventories are Chinese medicine, health products and
ERa R L RO R related books held for sale by subsidiaries of the Group.
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19.

20.

ME R B~ 7R IR Ak R 4% 2

Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Deposits

oty K&
Consolidated University

(LAt T et )
( ExpressedTiEn thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017 2018 2017
JRE WA 3k Accounts Receivable 93,922 143,375 119,191 168,180
TR Prepayments 27,395 21910 26,938 25,201
K~ BER M HABRE4  Utility and Other Deposits 10,603 7,324 10,073 6,696

131,920 172,609 156,202 200,077
Mt -
Note:

A2 HEHOHE 52877 [ FE A S0 A At —4E I [ o A7t 2 B R sk T e —4
BRI (2 YIRS SR PR R RAF A R ik 2 05 7 (EE A B - 5 4
SHACRE R B ER BT TR AT o A5 B 00 A% 5 BR A 17 (T HEA

REIBPHSE o FABMITA W2 WK IR T A ARSI S0 2 AT - 2
 BHEHE - B R TIEE A D) o H RIS 2 AT B - I

JR2018%F6/130H - HEWCHE S CLAFAAE [ M BG4 rI R (EAELEL ~ SEAIEHT T AT 2 R SOMIAG £E 0 R FE 30 62,8508 7020174 151 = [H WY B 2\ il #2-4463,04018 7C) =

The majority of accounts receivable are without fixed terms of repayment and expected to be recovered within one year. The majority of prepayments will be recognised as
expenses within one year. Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of debtors for whom there was no recent history of default. Receivables
that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent debtors that have a good track record with the Group. Based on past experience, no impairment
allowance is considered necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

As at 30 June 2018, included in the balance of accounts receivable are loan and advance of the University totalling $28.5 million to two subsidiaries (2017: $30.4 million to three
subsidiaries). The loan and advance are interest-free, unsecured and have no fixed repayment terms.

E B 7 & 20. Term Deposits

w2018 4E 6 A 30 H » =IE4L 400 # ¢ As at 30 June 2018, three term deposits amounted to
(2017 4 400 7T ) WY& WAL KK $4.0 million (2017: $4.0 million) were pledged to a bank
FRTEREREBBE Y EEESMEN in lieu of the electricity deposits and letter of credit for the

ARIHEAR iy o Group.



21.

22.

BekFhilekEMASREEHR

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Cash Flow Information

B RAFR B a i

Cash and Cash equivalents comprise:

ey K& S
Consolidated University
(AN T Tt )
( Expressedfn thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Bl S ARTTHE T Cash on Hand and Balances with Banks 266,263 223,414 201,513 159,946
TR Short-term Deposits 7,036 64,745 7,036 64,745
273,299 288,159 208,549 224,691

TR PR A B A R BN B B R o AR B ROIE B S E) o Ak A RLE S B) ) B R B R R BUR R

ReRgnfenEfn Ak AREESHeREnaR -

The table below details changes in the Group's and University's liabilities from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or
future cash flows will be, classified in cash flow statement as cash flows from financing activities.

AR
Consolidated and University
BUFER BITER Rt
Government Bank
Loans Loans Total
(AW T oeet) (FiF&E 26.7) (HH3E 26.2)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) (Note 26.1) (Note 26.2)
201747 H1H At 1 July 2017 159,644 57,169 216,813
HRER Repayment of loans (15,964) (9,078) (25,042)
201846 H 30 H At 30 June 2018 143,680 48,091 191,771
WA
Deferred Income
oty K&
Consolidated University
(LIVB¥Toesh)
( Expressedricn thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017 2018 2017
TR AE U3 S R K Deferred Government Subventions
( BEEE 22.1) and Donations (Note 22.1) 465,815 441,837 432,687 410,934
A=Y Deferred Tuition Fees 210,847 181,756 210,847 181,756
ERIATI PN Other Deferred Income 29,752 24,108 29,753 22,975
706,414 647,701 673,287 615,665
Mz -
Note:

K EBABLEYA AT 1 — 1 BEERB AU~

The majority of deferred income is expected to be recognized as income within one year.
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23. 1R B & A $ f

Provision for Employee Benefits

BAa KE
Consolidated University
(LAVB¥ T oest)
( ExpressedTiEn thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017 2018 2017
R TE Salaries and Wages 2,663 3,834 2,663 3,834
MG Z AR K EAb 8] Leave and Other Benefits Accruals 160,950 163,039 160,897 162,977
H)TWIN 4 B S Hofth  Gratuity Provisions and Others 119,578 111,773 119,463 111,478
283,191 278,646 283,023 278,289
JEASF Payable
W TAERSEREF Within 1 year or on demand 172,671 163,868 172,584 163,550
R TERE 2ERN More than 1 year but less than 2 years 96,850 105,522 96,769 105,483
N 2EERE 5ER More than 2 years but less than 5 years 13,670 9,256 13,670 9,256
110,520 114,778 110,439 114,739
283,191 278,646 283,023 278,289
24. 1 BB iK1 F 24. Employee Retirement Benefits
(a) 5 €& A8 K25t # (a) Defined benefit retirement scheme

s KB 1998 AR & B (RS
[ARSED » Jh— M h R R e
HEFBIREFHE]  H 25.72% (2017 4
25.96%) MIAKBE2HEE B 2 B H -
AEEDEEEA RO > L& E A ROR
—BE RS KR G Rk
HE20 0 - Afa R R A RKE
HRIEAE ST A E i s

BB IRET B RG> AT vE
BB R ERABREF B AT
A ZIERHRR > BR S EOR K A B B A 5
G Yt A B IR B ROR B R B 2 B
IR T A R AL B T LA ST
TR SR K A BT A AR A

SUMRIEA B B B iR A ¥at | AR
ZREARC &Ml fRER LA Bt
MEAEE R — e fFoR R eqt#l -

The University makes contributions to a defined benefit
retirement scheme named the Hong Kong Baptist University
1998 Superannuation Fund ("the Fund"), which covers
25.72% (2017: 25.96%) of the University's full-time
employees. It is established under trust with its assets held
separately from those of the University. The Fund is funded
by contributions from the Fund members and the University

in accordance with a trust deed.

The Fund is classified as a defined benefit retirement
scheme under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance. Nevertheless, all benefits payable under
the Fund, except for death and total & permanent
disability cases, are based on the accumulated balance of
contributions made by the employee and the University
for that employee during his/her membership with the
Fund. The additional liabilities arising from death and
total & permanent disability benefits, which are based
on final monthly salary of the relevant employee, are
fully covered by insurance arrangements. Therefore, in

substance, the Fund is a defined contribution scheme.



O3 4 0 SR — UM SRS B A R
2017 4F 6 H 30 Hi#EAT » I th HERH
B — EtH (FB) FRATARE - 2
PR EAG AR REBUR > Z ANFFAIA
B ERE M 100% XA RERARKEHA
RENF - AHEZEER 2017 4F
6 30 ARF3EMIN & hee g
BREEERARMMES  FEUKX
FFHERTRAE -

A KB IRORS B R e A R
SEHMER - REEREZ AR ]
WA Sy 7,760 B IC (2016-17 4 JE -
7,610 70 ) °

5t 7€ {5k oR k2wt 3

KB ] I — AR R CR R A &
a0 1) 2 SR BT Y A AR B R
BRI EREEEH ) > BRESM
KB R AR R AR IR R B A B
SE o WG A — 1 1 M L 32 RE N LY
e IR KB 5B o FEMIRAT Bt #
DEEEV &R ot Ei =il
WA H) 5% ek - MR HRHEM R
B A b B 7 3 T o 5t #I K
2 HE £ 8 A th R KO8 S BD B A B
R A o REEREF B SR HELZ
A S 3,460 # T (2016-17 4FJE -
3,390 B L) °

(b)

The latest independent actuarial valuation of the Fund was
done at 30 June 2017 by Mercer (Hong Kong) Limited,
a professional consulting actuary. The actuarial valuation
indicated that the University's obligations under the Fund
were 100% covered by the Fund assets held by the
trustees. The Fund assets would continue to be sufficient
to meet the Fund's obligations throughout the period of
3 years from 30 June 2017 providing that the contribution

to the Fund is made in accordance with the trust deed.

During the year, contributions to the Fund have been made
according to the recommendation made by the actuary.
Contributions paid by the University to the Fund for the
year amounted to $77.6 million (2016-17: $76.1 million).

Defined contribution retirement scheme

The University also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme ("the MPF scheme") as required under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees not covered by the defined benefit retirement
scheme. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
scheme administered by independent trustees. Under the
MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees' relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of $30,000. Contributions to the scheme
vest immediately. Contributions paid by the University to
the MPF scheme for the year amounted to $34.6 million

(2016-17: $33.9 million).

88



25.

26.

ik e o Tk T H

Accounts Payable and Accruals

ey RE
Consolidated University

(LA Toest )
( Expressedjli:n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017 2018 2017
JERHIE K R EEFTIEE  Accounts Payable and Accruals 131,159 159,654 130,066 158,362
HAHEATIR K Sundry Creditors 49,050 50,292 47,611 49,611
M & Sundry Deposits 17,064 18,039 14,594 15,738
JREAH HEAL A 57 2B Amounts due to Partners on Joint Courses 11,048 13,574 11,048 13,574
M el TR R4 Retention Monies Payable 12,569 17,612 12,569 17,612
HE SR UGC Holding Account 155,318 152,703 155,318 152,703

376,208 411,874 371,206 407,600
Note:

A iSO SR e 7 H B T A —AE R £

The majority of accounts payable and accruals are expected to be settled within one year.

Loans
KEEME 2 SHEEENT -

Details of the Group's loans are as follows:




26.1

26.2

B Rk

Government Loans

BERAKE
Consolidated and University
(AR T et )
( Expressed} Tn thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017
JEAY Payable
W 1ER Within 1 year 15,964 15,964
R 2N After 1 year but within 2 years 15,964 15,964
3 EH 5 ER After 2 years but within 5 years 47,893 47,893
A 5 AR After 5 years 63,859 79,823
127,716 143,680
143,680 159,644
Note:

BIBIF TR PR [BORF) JHELE F I — IR M sk PA -

The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region ( "the Government ") provided one long-term loan to the University as follows:

TEZSHE D 67 PTBLE — PT E P T42 LR AR (AR R 1 B 2 3. 600080 B3k - HR20189F6 5 30 H Bk 2 #1743 23 %4 & 19 Y - RATBEBRIRIET/F (B 7300C (20174 ¢ O7L) » % BHR/E
1200842187 105 A5 - CAF 200995 11 EFFB RN FE SR 104 - K (0 BB RTAHI 20109F 21 277 184F VAT REHE = A9 0 BRI E 20174 21 HEFF A58 - S B0
WtE » KBTI IR I RF LU T BORF I B WA RIS SE RIS AV 2018406 730 H IEFIE - BURFEERZ AFFIFE/S1.132% © 201846 T30 H > FESAT KR RMEST
AFIEIN 131437 07C (20174 159645 70) K70 7020174 - 80H7C) -

A loan of $360.0 million for the construction of a campus in Shek Mun offering associate degree programmes was secured by the properties on the campus with a net book value
after deprecation of $Nil as at 30 June 2018 (2017: $Nil). The loan which was repayable in ten equal annual installments from February 2008 had been extended for another 10 years
in May 2009. Pursuant to the extension, the outstanding loan balance is repayable in 18 equal annual installments from February 2010. The loan remained interest-free up to February
2017, after which, the outstanding loan balance has attracted an interest charge payable to the Government annually in arrear, at an interest rate equivalent to the cost of funding to
the Government. During the year ended 30 June 2018, the interest rate on Government loan was 1.132% per annum. As at 30 June 2018, the outstandling loan balance and loan interest
payable amounted to $143.7 million (2017: $159.6 million) and $0.7million (2017: $0.8 million) respectively.

AT B &
Bank Loans
[P ON
Consolidated and University
(AW T Tt )
( Expressetﬁn thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017
JE At Payable
®1ER Within 1 year 7,773 9,087
NS 2 RN After 1 year but within 2 years 7,631 7,786
REE 3 EH 5 ER After 2 years but within 5 years 19,640 23,196
N5 R After 5 years 13,047 17,100
40,318 48,082
48,091 57,169
BAERKE
Consolidated and University
T4 B R4 JITHESF-22) B R A7 2
(LT nggh.ted-average We'ight.ed-average
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) effective interest rate 2018 effective interest rate 2017
T ERATER Bank loans at variable rate 2.01% 48,091 1.95% 57,169

Wit -
Note:
(1) J2018%6/130H » AZELUL M RETFERFAG RN » %5 BERIWR A (2 1.923007C (20174 - 1.984f57C) °
As at 30 June 2018, the bank loans were secured by mortgages over the University's land and building with an aggregate carrying value of $ 192.3 million (2017: $198.4 million).

2) BE201896 /130 H i FHE » ABL (T TFIB AR 106870 (2016-174F : 1005 75) -
During the year ended 30 June 2018, bank interest expense totalling $1.06 million (2016-17: $1.0 million) was incurred.
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28.

(Q)

Financial Instruments

In the normal course of business, the Group is exposed to
credit, liquidity, interest rate, foreign currency and equity
price risks associated with financial instruments. These risks
are managed in accordance with the Group's guidelines
and policies, approved by the Finance Committee under the

Council, described as follows:

Credit risk

The Group's exposure to credit risk is primarily attributable
to its investments in debt securities and bank deposits. The
carrying amounts of these balances represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial

assets.

The Group mitigates credit risk by investing primarily in
instruments issued by banks or corporations with a minimum
credit rating of "A" as assigned by at least two international
credit rating agencies and performing periodic monitoring
on their credit ratings. Debt securities held for trading,
mostly of investment grades, are managed by experienced
and approved professional investment managers who
manage the portfolios through a comprehensive monitoring
system. The Group has no concentration of credit risk in
view of its investment in various instruments issued by

numerous banks or corporations.

In respect of bank deposits, internal policies have also been
set up to reduce risk involved, restricting deposits to be
placed with local and overseas financial institutions with
acceptable investment grade credit ratings so as to limit its
exposure to credit risk. The Group also limits total amount

deposited with each financial institution.

Credit risk associated with receivables is immaterial to the
Group and all doubtful amounts are adequately provided
for. The Group does not provide any guarantees which

would expose the Group to credit risk.
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Contractual maturities of outstanding liabilities

(b) Liquidity risk

The Group has established a system to regularly monitor
current and expected cash demands to ensure it has
sufficient liquid funds to finance its ongoing working capital

requirements of both the short and the long terms.

TREF T REARNSAARREEFNRGBSAR - ZESMAGRDSAAMRBSRE (@S HRRFE ZF
I - SR TR R R AR FIAE A5 B 2 RIER) DL OR 22 T A A R A i L F A

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date of the Group's financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

Bif

Consolidated

(LA Toest)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars )

2018

BRARME RTER RTER O R2ER
B HEOR BN BESFER R5FK

MR IE (A At IR B R HR
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year Tyearbut 2 yearsbut
Carrying  undiscounted oron less than lessthan ~ More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
B Government Loans 143,680 151,812 17,591 17,410 51,146 65,665
SRITEK Bank Loans 48,091 52,928 8,672 8,376 20,958 14,922
5 E e
WE%E%? Acacr?grfcgiy;,‘f'e 376,208 376,208 376,208 - - -
WS H| 2R
. .
1E§;%ﬂ P“,’E‘r’]';;g‘ygB enefits 283,191 283,191 172,671 96,850 13,670 -
&M T H  Derivative Financial
=Lt Instruments Liabilities 1,027 1,027 1,027 - - -
852,197 865,166 576,169 122,636 85,774 80,587
(LA HET TRt
( Expressedjli:n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2017
BRRIB iy {EW AR it 2R
fﬁ%{ﬁi% EZ%X §2$I*J £5 @W ﬁi‘S%fﬁ
R (E st ERieVE EiR R fH
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted or on less than less than ~ More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
B overnment Loans , , ) s / /
BUR &R G L 159,644 169,661 17,849 17,591 51,688 82,533
AT Bank Loans 57,169 62,708 10,128 8,653 24,869 19,058
HE
WE%&%@Z Accounts Payable 411,874 411,874 411,874 - : :
WSS A 2R
H e -
{E;j%* I Pr%x;;‘g‘yi%eneﬁts 278646 278,646 163,868 105,522 9,256 .
A
fif4mTH Derivative Financial
Z Bk Instruments Liabilities 4,644 4644 4,644 ) ) )
911,977 927,533 608,363 131,766 85,813 101,591
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Contractual maturities of outstanding liabilities (Cont'd)
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The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date of the University's financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the reporting date) and the earliest date the University can be required to pay:

KE
University
(AT oTRE)
( Expressedjli:n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018
BRRIB 1 1 4R AR it 2R
Remi  SEK E26W B5ER MBS
MR (E Mt ERievE 5 fH fE
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted or on less than less than More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
BB Government Loans 143,680 151,812 17,591 17,410 51,146 65,665
AT Bank Loans 48,091 52,928 8,672 8,376 20,958 14,922
5 Eod
%%Elgéz Accounts Payable 371206 371206 371,206 - . .
WSS A 2R
=Pl e
{E;ﬁ%* I Pr(l)f\r/rlmspil(z)r;/gérBeneﬁts 283,023 283,023 172,584 96,769 13,670 -
A
fi% 4@ TH Derivative Financial
Z Atk Instruments Liabilities 1027 1027 1027 ) ) )
847,027 859,996 571,080 122,555 85,774 80,587
(LA ToTit )
( Expressedjli:n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2017
BRRAB T 1A AR it 2 R
Remi  sEK 26 BSER RS
MR (E Mt e A 5 fE = fE
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year 1yearbut 2 yearsbut
Carrying  undiscounted oron less than less than ~ More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
BB Government Loans 159,644 169,661 17,849 17,591 51,688 82,533
SRATEE K Bank Loans 57,169 62,708 10,128 8,653 24,869 19,058
I
WE%E%S Acacr?(;”){igiyji"e 407,600 407,600 407,600 - - -
WS H| 2R
. .
1E§§%§*J P”Eﬁiﬁﬁiiseneﬁm 278,289 278,289 163,550 105,483 9,256 -
4T H  Derivative Financial
=Lt Instruments Liabilities 4,644 4,644 4,644 - - -

907,346 922,902 603,771 131,727 85,813 101,591
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Interest rate risk

The Group has exposure to interest rate risk through the
impact of rate changes on interest-bearing financial assets
and borrowings. The Group manages the exposure of
interest bearing assets through diversifying its investments
into a variety of fixed and floating rate instruments with
various tenures. As for interest-bearing borrowings, its
exposure primarily relates to floating rate bank loans as

detailed in Note 26.2 on the financial statements.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in Hong Kong dollar. Nevertheless,
the Group has cash and cash equivalents, held-to-maturity
debt securities and trading securities denominated in

various foreign currencies.

In respect of the currency risk of financial assets denominated
in US dollar, the Group considers that Hong Kong dollar is
currently pegged to US dollar under the linked exchange
rate system adopted by the Government and that it is not
necessary to actively hedge its exposure to US dollar. As
to assets denominated in other currencies, the Group's
appointed investment managers use forward foreign
exchange contracts to manage the foreign currency risk

exposure.



A B R B R i
Exposure to foreign currency risk

LUR SRR B R B B A5 B A LU AN 45 58 2 W R ORI 2 SN R B 9 L

The following table details as at the reporting date the Group's major exposure to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the Group's functional currency:

e
Consolidated
(BLFIERt)
(ExprejEssed in thousands of dollars ) 2018
EST NG Ly O At g
United
States Australian Japanese British
Dollars ~ Renminbi Dollars Euro Yen Sterling
#E Investments 339,749 - 5,438 45,017 2,007,469 13,424
JEYIE 2K ~ TR Accounts Receivable,

Y& E Prepayments and Deposits 3495 600 80 319 3,215 %2
EWEH - B4 Term Deposits,

BRI 4 Cash and Cash Equivalents 14,423 2,194 1,104 722 11,019 553
FERHIEZ S MEFHEE Accounts Payable and Accruals (5,434) (2,346) 3) - - (364)
AW B 3 A Net exposure to currency risk 352,233 448 6,619 46,058 2,021,703 13,705
FRs T HKD equivalent 2,763,841 534 38,353 421,881 143,197 141,930
i Exchange rate @ 7.8466 1.1920 5.7944 9.1598 0.0708 10.3561
(BTFJERT)

(Expremssed in thousands of dollars ) 2017
B AR Ly o HIT ES S
United
States Australian Japanese British
Dollars ~ Renminbi Dollars Euro Yen Sterling
wE Investments 287,207 - 4,299 42,322 2,466,115 13,593
IR K ~ FEHIR X Accounts Receivable,

PEiE Prepayments and Deposits 6490 4429 >34 146 4218 32
EMEH - Bl4E Term Deposits,

T B Cash and Cash Equivalens 21,076 2,551 1,083 393 20,506 1,023
JERTIR R B MEFHTEH Accounts Payable and Accruals (8,563) - 22) (50) (1,778) (14)
AN FE g R A Net exposure to currency risk 306,210 6,980 5914 42,811 2,489,061 14,634
VST HKD equivalent 2,390,338 8,194 35,412 381,153 172,933 148,403

e 2% Exchange rate @ 7.8062 1.1739 5.9878 8.9032 0.0695 10.1410
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Exposure to foreign currency risk (Cont'd)
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The following table details as at the reporting date the University's major exposure to currency risk arising from

recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the University's functional currency:

KE
University
(UF7Eat)
(Expressed in thousands of dollars ) 2018
EVH NG Ly O At gk
United
States Australian Japanese British
Dollars  Renminbi Dollars Euro Yen Sterling
wg Investments 339,749 - 5,438 45,017 2,007,469 13,424
TR 2K ~ FEFTIR K Accounts Receivable,

P& & Prepayments and Deposits 3495 600 80 319 3,215 92
EWHEH - B4 Term Deposits,

BRI Cash and Cash Equivalents 14,423 2,194 1,104 722 11,019 553
FERHIE R MEFHEE Accounts Payable and Accruals (5,434) (2,346) 3) - - (364)
AN TR g VA Net exposure to currency risk 352,233 448 6,619 46,058 2,021,703 13,705
SRS HKD equivalent 2,763,841 534 38,353 421,881 143,197 141,930
ER Exchange rate @ 7.8466 1.1920 5.7944 9.1598 0.0708 10.3561
(UF7Eat)

(Expressed in thousands of dollars ) 2017
£ NG B ST At gk
United
States Australian Japanese British
Dollars  Renminbi Dollars Euro Yen Sterling
g Investments 287,207 - 4,299 42,322 2,466,115 13,593
TEMOE R ~ FE{HIE K Accounts Receivable,

Y& & Prepayments and Deposits 6,240 4429 >34 146 4218 32
EMEE  Bl4 Term Deposits,

A Cash and Cash Equivalents 21,076 2,551 1,083 393 20,506 1,023
JERTIRZ S REFHE R Accounts Payable and Accruals (8,563) - (22) (50) (1,778) (14)
AN gy AR Net exposure to currency risk 305,960 6,980 5914 42,811 2,489,061 14,634
EAER ST HKD equivalent 2,388,390 8,194 35,412 381,153 172,933 148,403
file 2 Exchange rate @ 7.8062 1.1739 5.9878 8.9032 0.0695 10.1410




ik 5% 1 % By

KB 8 DR A 20 5 2 T R R O I M
SRE (AR SR AR A AT
THRZEMTH ) iR %L EREED)
T ot A€ A JEU By o B 5 SR 9 15
AT T LA B R T
BF 72 6 0 DAAE B o B A B R K B
B BB RS ETT BUE - BOROM EAS
Ja B 7y BORS AS ] B R B AT S B AL
T o DR 2 ] R I L A5 AT A
B BEE KB AG E R, DAER R PR
% Z AR o

20184 6 H 30 H » KEFMBRAS
B EE RS R SR AR (R
WEE 17.2) 1832 5 T 5 s [ 81 2 < 7 43
27 (I

(e) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from its equity investments classified as trading securities
(excluding debt securities and financial instruments with
embedded derivatives). The equity price risk of these
investments are managed by qualified investment managers
using their in-house expert investment processes and market
research capabilities. The investment managers follow
the Group's investment guidelines in order to achieve
diversification of equity price risk among the investment
portfolios in different countries and industry segments.
The Group also monitors its risk exposure by carrying out
appropriate assessment on the investment strategies and

reviewing periodic reports from the investment managers.

As at 30 June 2018, the percentage of carrying amounts
of equity investments classified as trading securities
which are held by the Group (see Note 17.2) as analysed
by geographic markets in which the equity securities are

traded, are as follows:

Falkokg
Consolidated and University

2018 2017
% %
B3t United States 45.5 478
B Europe 20.5 20.1
HA& Japan 6.0 5.8
Hh B A China and Hong Kong 10.5 9.1
T Australia 1.0 09
Hopb [ Others 16.5 16.3
Mk Total 100.0 100.0
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(f)

Fair value

Trading securities (excluding financial instruments with
embedded derivatives) are stated at quoted bid prices
at the reporting date. Dated securities, which are those
securities that the Group has the intention and ability to
hold to maturity, are measured at amortised cost less
impairment losses (see Note 17 for fair values of held-to-
maturity debt securities). The fair values of held-to-maturity
debt securities are estimated as the present values of future
cash flows, discounted at current market interest rates for
similar financial instruments. The fair values of financial
instruments with embedded derivatives are estimated on
a mark-to-market basis of the options embedded in the
securities plus the present value of the future guaranteed
cash flow that is discounted at current market interest
rate. The carrying amounts of short-term receivables and
payables are estimated to approximate their fair values due
to short-term maturities of these assets and liabilities. The
fair value of long-term bank loans approximates the carrying
amount because they bear interest at floating market interest
rates. The fair values of unlisted investments in subsidiaries,
an associate and joint ventures cannot be reliably estimated

because of a lack of open market for such investments.

Fair value measurement
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's
and the University's financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the inputs

used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e.
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

Level 2: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are

inputs for which market data are not available.

100
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BH AR LR T B I E

Level 3: Fair value measured using significant unobservable

PR F S - inputs.
oY N
Consolidated and University
2018

(LA T TEAT ) B P B At
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
RPN RMEEFR  Recurring Fair Value Measurements
wEGE Investment Assets
WEE#S Trading Securities

1B Debt Securities 22,717 1,429,649 - 1,452,366

Jiji&s Equity Securities 1,464,081 - - 1,464,081

= e AN H . . . .

Mf:é%ﬁ%l/\z De/-r\lsvsaettlg/e Financial Instruments 4,865 2353 i 7201

BEHSE Investment Funds 422,805 311,509 315,952 1,050,266

fiEemTAEZ Derivative Financial Instruments

=V Liabilities - (1,027) - (1,027)
Hast Total 1,914,471 1,742,484 315,952 3,972,907
2017
g s — g = e

(RLBHET 5T ) M HM FR At
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B ARMEFRE  Recurring Fair Value Measurements
BEERE Investment Assets
AEERS Trading Securities

&% Debt Securities 20,785 1,247,058 - 1,267,843

JBe Equity Securities 1,445,444 - - 1,445,444

AT T LS R

it %%MIAZ De/-r\lsvsa;tlgfe Financial Instruments 1435 219 ) 2154

HEHES Investment Funds 190,381 283,411 285,063 758,855

S e 1Lt N . . .

WHERANXMETLTE  Financial Instruments with

ZERTH Embedded Derivatives ) 23,324 . 23,324

e AT EL o

1(1%%&;&1,\2 De{ilg/;t];ggsﬁnanaa] Instruments 2,539) 2105) i 4644)
HEr Total 1,655,506 1,552,407 285,063 3,492,976

TEBE 201846 H30 H & 201746 A
30 AR &0 R EE% &2 ik

BAH R -

During the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2017, there were

no transfers between each level of fair value hierarchy.
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The fair value of the securities under Level 2 is determined
by reference to the prices at the reporting date provided by
the investment managers or banks and have been translated
using the appropriate foreign currency rates at the end of

the reporting period.

The fair value of the investment Funds at Level 3 represent
the investment funds managed by the fund managers. Such
investment funds are stated with reference to the net asset
value of these investments. A valuation report with analysis
of changes in fair value measurement is prepared by the

investment managers at each annual reporting date.

The movements during the period in the balance of these

Level 3 fair value measurement are as follows:

e R
Consolidated and University
(LA TIesH)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017
fERe

Investment Funds

7H1BZARMERN Fair value as at 1 July 285,063 254,525
Hn Additions 12,527 11,000
TEASH H R Net realised and unrealised gain recognised in
AT BRI R E 2 Statement of Comprehensive Income for assets 18,362 19,710
jee e SceRtlEn held at the end of the reporting date
& Disposals - (172)

6 H 30 HZ AR fElE Fair value as at 30 June 315,952 285,063

102
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(i) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other

than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's and the University's
financial instruments carried at amortised cost and their fair
value and the level of fair value hierarchy are disclosed

below:

Ba
Consolidated
20184630 H 2 A RBIfE &

SRR TR
Fair value measurements as at
30 June 2018 categorised into

2018 4 2018 4 B o B
6A30H 6H30H
RHEE  AREE

Carrying Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
amounts at
as at 30 June
SR 30 June 2018
(LAB¥ToTet)
( Expressedj?n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018
FEA R A 2 5%
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities 2,000 2,000 ) ) 2,000
oty
Consolidated
20174F6 130 HZ A Sefifist &
RERLL A

Fair value measurements as at
30 June 2017 categorised into

2017 & 2017 4 H— o EEH
6H30H 6H30H
WRmE A REE

Carrying Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
amounts at
as at 30 June
AT TR ) 30 June 2017
( Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2017
-+ I (==
Fe 25 2605 49,271 49,430 - 47,430 2,000

Held-to-maturity Debt Securities




KB
University
201846130 H Z A AR fFfiat i
Vi - 1ay 3|

Fair value measurements as at

30 June 2018 categorised into
2018 4 2018 4 B B E=M
6H30H 6H30H 104
WRHEE  AAREE e

Carrying Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
amounts at
as at 30 June
e 30 June 2018
(LA oTsh)
(Expressedﬂi:n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018
FHEE A 25 ] ) ) ) )
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities
RE
University
20174F6H30H 2 /A A fHfE Rl &
SRRELL R

Fair value measurements as at
30 June 2017 categorised into
2017 4 2017 4 B B =4
6 H30H 6H30H
WRHEE  AAREE

Carrying Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
amounts at
as at 30 June
e 30 June 2017
(LAVB¥EFoTsh)
( Expressedﬂi:n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2017
= I > y
Pt 25 1 L0 47271 47430 - 47430 .

Held-to-maturity Debt Securities
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(g)
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O 2 B
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[©

#2018 4 6 H 30 B > fE ALK 4
AREWEWT > WAL T/ TR
50 B AEFIREEE BN B RIS/
BNA 2,070 BT (2017 4F © 471,830 &
JC) e

9)

@)

Sensitivity analysis
Interest rate risk

As at 30 June 2018, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have decreased/increased
the Group's surplus by approximately $20.7 million (2017:
approximately $18.3 million).

oAt R
Consolidated and University
(LB Bocst)

( Expressedfinmmillions of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017
PR HEk AL/ 787
(FWH) i) (T 5 2
Increase/ Effect Increase/ Effect
(Decrease) on (Decrease) on
in interest Surplus in interest Surplus

rates rates
; 0.5% (23.9) 0.5% (21.6)
B Investments 0.5)% 23.9 0.5)% 216
- 0.5% 0.7) 0.5% 0.8)
UMLK Government Loans (0.5)% 0.7 (0.5)% 0.8
Py 0.5% 0.2) 0.5% 0.3)
AT SER Bank Loans 0.5)% 0.2 (0.5)% 03
EMEE - Ble Rk Term Deposits, Cash and 0.5% 4.1 0.5% 44
A B4 ash Equivalents .5)% . .5)% .

R4 Cash Equival 0.5)% 4.1 (0.5)% 4.4)

AR 7 TR S
5 B B R A
T I e B T R R R o R
RIS > T % B I B BB 1
B TR N Ta
B £ LR 55 -

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the reporting date and had been applied to the exposure
to interest rate risk for both derivative and non-derivative
financial instruments in existence at that date. The interest
rate assumptions represent the management's assessment
of a reasonable possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual reporting date in the light of the

current low absolute levels of interest rates.



(ii)

e 5 J e

#2018 4 6 A 30 H > Q1 B AN 5 i
ot 2 BEF T/ 3 5% A% 88/
R B BB R KB LR 4 3,370 BT
(2017 4 : %9 3,450 #T) -

(i) Foreign currency risk

At 30 June 2018, if there was a 5% strengthening/
weakening in the relevant foreign currencies against the
Hong Kong dollar, it would have increased/decreased
the Group's and the University's surplus by approximately
$33.7 million (2017: approximately $34.5 million).

Rk
Consolidated and University
(LU B ocat)
(Expressed in”;nillions of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017
WX LTt/ Was R/ HER
(T#) ey (T 5 2
Increase/ Effect Increase/ Effect
(Decrease) on (Decrease) on
in foreign Surplus in foreign Surplus
exchange exchange
rates rates
' 5% 329 5% 32.7
Best Investments (5)% (32.9) (5% (32.7)
JEIR X ~ Accounts Receivable, 5% 0.1 5% 0.6
UL O E Prepayments and Deposits (5)% (0.1) (5)% (0.6)
TR Bla Rk Term Deposits, Cash and 5% 1.0 5% 1.2
SR 4 Cash Equivalents (5)% (1.0 (5)% (1.2)
ST, 5% 0.3) 5% -
TEATIR 25 ) ESHIR H Accounts Payable and Accruals (5)% 0.3 5)% i

LA R A TG

B =< 1) 52 B A &
FOH B R R % BB R AT
TEM AR 2 A T R RT A
T I MR R S By o T A T 8 R (i
FHLR I 56 ) AR R 5

AR 45 A

B9 SR B - B TE B T 2
RIES 1 % LI S0 2 B
BT 2 A - B - R
B3 TE 2 Bt 17 -

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange rates had
occurred at the reporting date and had been applied to the
Group's exposure to currency risk for both derivative and
non-derivative financial assets in existence and outstanding
liabilities at that date, and that all other variables, in

particular interest rates, remain constant.

The stated changes represent the Group's reasonable
estimation of possible changes in foreign exchange rates.
It is also assumed that the pegged rate between the Hong
Kong dollar and the US dollar would not be significantly
impacted by changes in movement in value of the US
dollar against other currencies. As such, no analysis was
performed on the movement of the exchange rates between

the Hong Kong dollar and the US dollar.
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TEHE 201846 30 HIE&E K
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EEMMATRR W E - ERER
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R 47 BE B S E R o KB Y E S
BRI IR 4 o T B

29.

The Group's appointed investment managers use forward
foreign exchange contracts to manage the foreign currency

risk exposure on financial assets.

Capital Management

The University is a government subvented education
institution established in Hong Kong under Hong Kong Baptist
University Ordinance and is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements, except as stated below. The
University's capital mainly consists of surplus accumulated
since its inception, donations, capital grants from the
Government, Government loans and commercial loans. The

objectives of the University's capital management are:

- to ensure that the University will be able to continue as
a going concern so that it can continue to provide whole
person tertiary education and related services to the

community;
- to support stable operation of the University; and

- to maintain a strong capital base to support the future

development of the University.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the University's
objectives, policies and processes for managing capital
were largely unchanged. The University mainly relies
on capital grants from the Government for campus
expansion, improvements, and redevelopment relating to
UGC-funded activities. Donations, operation surplus and
commercial loans are used to supplement any shortfall in
such projects, premises acquisition and campus expansion
and redevelopment relating to non-UGC-funded activities
as well as other activities of a development nature. The
spending of government grants is governed by the UGC
Notes on Procedures and related grant conditions and the
spending of non-Government funds is subject to internal
guidelines and policies. The University implements a
comprehensive system to manage its funds under clear
investment guidelines and strategies formulated with the

assistance of an investment consultant. For the surplus
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30.

funds of an endowment nature, the University sets annual
spending limits so as to preserve the long-term purchasing
power of the fund. Professional investment managers
are appointed to manage funds of a long-term nature
while those of a shorter term nature are managed by the

University under approved guidelines.

Related Parties Transactions

All transactions relating to purchases of goods and
services and capital projects involving organisations, in
which whether a member of the University Council or
the University's key management personnel may have an
interest or not, are conducted during the normal course of
business and in accordance with the University's financial
regulations and normal procurement procedures. Donations
received from members of the University Council, key
management personnel, or organisations controlled
or significantly influenced by them were approved in

accordance with University's regulations.

During the year, the University entered into the following
transactions with its related parties in the ordinary course of

business:

Donations received from the University Council members,
the University's key management personnel and companies
controlled or significantly influenced by them amounted to

$0.2 million (2016-17: $0.1 million).

The University received administrative fee, consultancy
fee, management fee, licence fee and loan interest income
totalling $2.3 million (2016-17: $3.4 million) from its
subsidiaries and administration fee of $7.2 million (2016-17:

$6.8 million) from a joint venture.

The University paid for the services and goods from its
subsidiaries with a total value of $2.8 million (2016-17:
$2.9 million).
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(d) 201846 H30H » MBARKESE (d) At 30 June 2018, the amounts due from subsidiaries and a

RS R B KT joint venture to the University amounted to:

(CAHEHET Tt

( Expressedjli:n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017

it g /A Subsidiaries 29,723 37,122

EE N Joint Venture 6,498 16,172
36,221 53,294

TR B Al Z IR SRR~ RIS > RSOk R

The amount due from a joint venture is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

VA b B B B I B B B O W) 2 MR BRI LA AE JE R B 5 BB OIR K - FUTIRB R w2 A (BiE 17.1 & 19) ©
All the above amounts due from subsidiaries and a joint venture are included in Non-current Investments and
Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Deposits (Notes 17.1 and 19).

FEEMAR T IBM AL -
The total compensation to key management personnel” was:

(LA oest )
( Ex:)ressed] ?n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017
BAH Salaries 37,368 34,489
TR B AEF Short-term Employee Benefits 7,102 6,757
R IR B A& A Long-term Employee Benefits 5,806 5,603
50,276 46,849

*  LTEEIA A GIREZE SO

Key management personnel included members of the Senior Executive Committee.
KELHE B mMEBIEEKE 1998 A (f) The University's total contributions to Hong Kong Baptist
SRk E (R AR S ) 3K 7,760 T University 1998 Superannuation Fund ("the Fund") for its
(2016-17 %EJ¥ : 7,610 BT ) ° employees amounted to $77.6 million (2016-17: $76.1 million).
T AR B ) — (R AR ECE U 5 (g) The University made contributions to the MPF scheme
AT R B A ) BT Y o AR as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
R R RS 3,460 BT Fund Schemes Ordinance. Total contributions made for
(2016-17 41 : 3,390 7T ) ° the employees during the year amounted to $34.6 million

(2016-17: $33.9 million).
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31. Capital Commitments

As at 30 June 2018, outstanding capital commitments not

yet provided for in the financial statements are as follows:

BRA Bk 110
Consolidated and University —
(LAVB¥ET TRt
( Expressedﬂi:n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017
B4 Contracted for 184,975 212,454
CIRHEm R ERH) Authorised but not yet contracted for 212,659 187,367
397,634 399,821
BEMEKRIE 32. Operating Lease Commitments

REHB S EMEHA -y K
AR RELAT A A 1 % 5 A 0 HA R
TEXTRARAEA > Je Ry oy A REL 44 sk 2
HH A E o FELAY A FCRE W AR R AR
Pl mii e E s - A HAHRE
HRAHE -

it 2018 4F 6 A 30 H » TERAARIEA A
TR 0 8 2 B T E ST A I B AR AR A0 S
HAHEM T

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases. Most of the leases run for an initial period of 1 to
5 years with a renewable option upon expiry at which
time all terms are renegotiated. Lease payments are usually
reviewed annually to reflect market rentals. None of the

leases includes contingent rentals.

At 30 June 2018, the future minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

B KA
Consolidated University

(LA ¥ETFoTst)
(Expressedﬂi:n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017 2018 2017
w1TER Within 1 year 10,884 4,007 10,038 3,076
R 2 BE 5 AFR After 1 year but within 5 years 33,524 1,066 33,524 886
5 AEE After 5 years 59,167 - 59,167 -
92,691 1,066 92,691 886
103,575 5,073 102,729 3,962
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Bi A

Taxation

ENTIEEINPN Ot JEPRETY

Income Tax in the Statement of Comprehensive Income of the Group represents:

Foyey
Consolidated
(LA T et
( Expressedﬂ?n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017
AEFERIEI Charge for the year:
- FWE AR - Hong Kong Profits Tax 10 16

10 16

R R HAETH RIERIE A T T BUG LM 2 500 R A BB RO (55 112 2) 5 88 =B I3 HiIE
Hih o

The University and some of its subsidiaries limited by guarantee are approved charitable institutions exempted
from Hong Kong Profits Tax under Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance (Cap. 112).

FELE B B A R T H A s MG B DARE SR RBL R F T o BHUSHTE A RILL 16.5% (2016-17 45 & 16.5%) MIBLRFIHFUE
AR o R B T B vl [0 85 45 1 B JB /2 30 T 4 v [0 T A0 R A TR G 9 A ME SR B SR BT o B IR IR W0 38 70 1 B AR JE 2
EHWFIG B -

Subsidiaries of the Group are subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax. The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is
calculated at 16.5% (2016-17: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits of these subsidiaries for the year.
Subsidiaries of the Group with operations in the PRC are subject to the appropriate tax laws and regulations in the
PRC. Tax payable in the consolidated Statement of Financial Position represents provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax.

AR JEE T 150 B X2 SEL R B A a1 B A B 4 2 SR A R

Reconciliation between tax expense and surplus before taxation at applicable tax rates:

ey
Consolidated
(LT oot
(Expressed I;n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018 2017
Wi T 2 B Surplus before taxation 209,803 304,287
_— Notional tax on surplus before taxation
e =] ’
&Hg %ﬁ%giﬁ%i’% BiE calculated at rates applicable to surplus 34,080 49,444
. - in the jurisdictions concerned
ST B S 2 B s 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 482,122 473,679
WEFBIA 2 BB 2 Tax effect of non-taxable income (516,592) (523,713)
REERR B 4R Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 556 744
A LLRT R T RERR A AT IS WA LS 5. Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised (156) (138)
REY e Income tax expenses 10 16

201846 A 30 H X 2017 4 6 H 30 H » KEL M #8 KoK 2300 Mok B SRR i 18 S etk 2 B 00 7 KR e s 1Y) 30
AR RO 4L B 1

As at 30 June 2018 and 2017, there were no material unrecognised deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
in respect of accumulated tax losses arising from temporary difference of the Group and the University.
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34.

(a)

(b)

Significant Accounting Estimates and
Judgments

Estimates and judgments are reviewed by the management
of the Group annually based on experience and changes
in external environment. The estimates and judgments that
have a significant impact on the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities are discussed below:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The estimated useful lives and residual values of the
Group's property, plant and equipment for determining the
annual depreciation charge are reviewed annually by the
management making reference to historical data of similar

assets.

Financial instruments

The estimates and judgments made by the management in
respect of the financial instruments held by the Group are

discussed in Note 28.

n2
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35. Possible Impact of Amendments, New

Accounting Standards and Interpretations
Issued but not yet Effective

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective
for the year ended 30 June 2018 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These include the

following which may be relevant to the Group and the

University.
R B AR B
B & FHAF AR
Effective for accounting periods
beginning
(BB E RIS 9 9% S TH 20184 1H1H

HKFRS 9

(FRB B HE RIS 15 98
HKFRS 15

(Rl (B AR RE R B ) @RS 22 9%
HK(FRIC) 22

(EB I ERIDES 16 95
HKFRS 16

(Frifs (MBI ER R R R ) B4 23 98
HK(IFRIC) 23

Financial instruments

YRRk OTTON

Revenue from contracts with customers

SMESE 5 R A AE
Foreign currency transactions and advance
consideration

HE

Leases

FT A0 B B ) A i A

Uncertainty over income tax treatments

1 January 2018

2018 1H 1H
1 January 2018

2018 1TH1H
1 January 2018
20194 1H1H

1 January 2019

2019 1H1H
1 January 2019

B R IE 7E AT T8 S0 AT 3 K HR
MR AR o B EAA L K ERR
B BRT LT BT - BRAVE SR -
e S0 5 R A S S A R T K
[ RRIEPNZ 1

(Bl BB R HERSE 9 5 - [&m TA ]

o s BB i YR JUD ) 56 9 SR AS I BLAT
S TREFHED > NCFEaTHE)
B399 [T H : MR LIE]-
CR s B B i YR T ) 56 9 5% 0 B 5 S
Oy BT - R AR A (%
ERtEIIAMER < 55— T > (F#

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of

what the effect of these amendments, new standards and

interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial

application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of

them is unlikely to have a significant effect on results of

operations and financial position, except for the following:

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting

for financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments:

Recognition and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces

new requirements for classification and measurement

of financial assets, calculation of impairment of financial

assets and hedge accounting. On the other hand, HKFRS 9
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(ii)

incorporates without substantive changes the requirements
of HKAS 39 for recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments and the classification of financial liabilities.
Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group's

consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories
for financial assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair
value through profit or loss and (3) fair value through other
comprehensive income. The classification is determined
based on the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets and the entity's business model for managing
the financial assets. Based on a preliminary assessment, the
Group expects that the new classification and measurement
requirements will not have a material impact on its

accounting for financial assets.

Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 will replace the
"incurred loss" model in HKAS 39 with an "expected credit
loss" model. Under the expected credit loss model, it will
no longer be necessary for a loss event to occur before an
impairment loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is required
to recognise and measure expected credit losses as either
12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected
credit losses, depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. This new impairment model may result in
an earlier recognition of credit losses on the Group's other
financial assets. Based on a preliminary assessment, the
Group expects that the new impairment model will not have
a material impact on its accounting for accounts receivable

and other financial assets.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a new framework for income
recognition. It introduces a five-step model in order to
determine when and how to recognise income. Income is
recognised when an entity transfers control of goods or

services to a customer at the amount to which the entity

7]
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expects to be entitled. The standard is not expected to have

any material impact to the income recognition of the Group.

HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group's accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties which are currently classified
as operating leases. The application of the new accounting
model is to account for all leases in a similar way to current
finance lease accounting. Therefore, it is expected to lead
to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact
on the timing of the expense recognition in the statement
of comprehensive income over the period of the lease. As
disclosed in Note 32, at 30 June 2018 the Group's future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases amounted to $103.6 million for properties, the
majority of which is payable more than a year after the
reporting date. The Group will need to perform a more
detailed analysis to determine the amounts of new assets
and liabilities arising from operating lease commitments
on adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking into account the
applicability of the practical expedient and adjusting for any
leases entered into or terminated between now and the

adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effect of discounting.
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WACERE SR T (@A) Changshu Xinlian Certified Public Accountants
KEE G A B T Rk A 1K) Da Hua Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership)
YR K G i i S 1 A PR (No English Name)
"—7 Wi R A wt R S 5 Kenny Chan & Co.
S5 I T KPMG
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AT Banks
I SRAT (i) B RRA R Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
STRARAT (i) A PR A Bank of Communications (Hong Kong) Limited
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HETRIT A R A The Bank of East Asia, Limited
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i DI ESRITERAR The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
B TR SRAT (BRI A BR A F Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
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Morgan Stanley Investment Management Limited
The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC

Schroder Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited

Western Asset Management Company Limited

Master Custodian

The Northern Trust Company
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Finance Office

Hong Kong Baptist University
Kowloon Tong, Hong Kong
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